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THE MASTER: You may oroceed, Mr. 

Mi.tchf'll. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e Meyers. 

OCTAVIO HINOJOSA, 

recalled as a witne~s. 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Mr. Hinojos.!!, I beli~-re at the termination of 

our court sessfon ye~terday you had EY~{b{t 167-5 

whfch ls an tndeY card which had been made uo 

tn a series of checks, claims, et Cf'tPra, from 

Duval Cnunty to thP Cash Store. 

As a oart of your testimony, I reouPsted 

the Court and the Court instructed you, ff you 

~ould, to brfn~ those jackets showin~ the jackPt, 

the documentation for the jacket behfnd the inde7-

in~. I beliPve, on E-167·5, am I correct? 

A Yes, sfr. 

0 Do you havP that ~ard so that we can ~et that 

back into the record, olease, str, E-167-5? 

A E-167-2. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry, Your Honor, 
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bt> E-167-2. 

THE MASTER: That'A rt,ht, ft i.s 

E-167-?.. 

Q E-167-2, the claim 1ackt>t rt>ft>rs to t~~t? 

A Yes, ~ir. 

Q As I call tht>m off, will you rt>ffr to it, to 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And to B-456, claim B-459 -- I am sorry. 

A Yt>s, B-459. 

Q You havt> that one? 

0 And E-167-2 also rt>lates to B-460, do you have 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

that "ne? 

YP"', !'li.r. 

All rif!:~t. And E-167·2 relatP.s to B-600, dtd 

YI')U brin~ H? 

YPs, sir, I tHcl. 

All ri ~ht, now can I have thost>, plpase, s{r? 

Yt>s, Ri.r. 

(Handed to Counsel.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud~e Mt>yt>rs, I have --

the witness has handed me ctatm jackt>ts wh{ch 
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I lwr ittentifipr' frnm E-167-? Anrl I would 

lik~ the Court'~ in~tructton~ on the Anoro-

However, I Rm aware of the 

bP -- ~nuld f~cilitate nroner understanding 

of thP recortt ff ~omehow they could be tied 

into the clAimq li~teri on E-167-1. 

I am nnen ,, any su~~estion from the 

Court. 

THE MASTER: I am ooen to su~~estion 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: All rfpht, Your Hrinor, 

nerhap~ we can then mark them Resnondent~ 

E7hibtts with s oaren E-167-? after them. 

inJ!, 

THE 'fASTER: I think that's s ~ood 

MR, MITCHELL: That's rfght, 62, Jud~e 

THE MASTER: With the narPnthP.s{s follow-
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MR. MITCHELL: So t'tP rPcord rPfl.Pcts 

to mPrk them commtonci n~r ,,d ti-t R-62. whtch 

for B-115 and ~o on. 

THF. MASTFR: Th1tt 1 s fine. 

(M~trkPri f~r idPntification by the 

R-66 (167-') ) 

you found thPm and have delivered them to the 

Court, 11m I corrPct. Mr. Htnoiosa? 

A YP~. sir. 

Q And I belif>VP thP first tfme that --

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

MR. ~ITCHF.LL: Strikto th1tt fra~mentary 

~tAtemPnt. 

They would be R-62, R-63, R-64, R-65 and R-66 and 

these relate back to E-167-2, am I correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And they tie in with the claim number on E-167-2? 

Yes, sir. 

And tell the Court where you found the claims, 

B-232, B-235, B-459, B-460 and B-~00. 

These were in the possession of the Attorney 
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General's office in the old bank building. 

In what county, Duval County? 

Yes, sir. 

What city? 

San Diego, 

If you recall, Judge Meyers asked you yes·terday 

if you would also determine if ":here were checks 

in the treasurer's office and did you--

supporting the entries on E-167-2 on the amounts 

of money. Were you able to find the checks that 

match up these cla.L.JS? 

I was able to find the checks at the First State 

Bank of San Diego, yes, sir. 

Did you bring those? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, you have handed me a package of checks tied 

into these by the claim number appearing on the 

checks. 

Yes, sir. 

That would be 3913, issued by the county, payable 

to the Cash Store? 

Yes, sir. 

In Benavides? 

Yes, sir. 

And issued by the treasurer of Duval County? 
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A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

And denominated payment of claims and that claim 

appears on the face of the check? 

Yes. 

And that is 3913? 

Yes, sir. 

And 3916? 

Yes, sir. 

4182, which paid B-4607 

Yes, sir. 

And 4468, which paLJ B-600? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you have copies of these checks with you? 

Yes, sir. 

May I have the copies to be marked. 

Yes, sir. 

And would you explain to the Court, please, and 

for the record, why the copies are necessary? 

Mr. Barney Goldthorn, the bank president, said 

he had to have the originals back on account of 

litigation between the county and the bank. 

MR. MITCHELL: In view of that, Your 

Honor, would it be permissible if I mark 

the copies and leave the originals for 

cross-examination with the request that they 
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be returned to the bank? 

THE MASTER: Certainly, you have the 

originals and you can have counsel compare 

them. I take it the copies are including 

both the face and the endorsement side of 

the check? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, siL. 

MR. MITCHELL: Let the record reflect 

the witness answered yes, sir to the Master's 

question. 

All right. Could I have, please, there 

are two to the page, and I would like to 

have them marked A and B, if I might, 

beginning with R-67 and marking them on 

through. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

documents were marked for identification 

R-67-A and B, R-68-A and B and R-69.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I hand you R-67-A and B and 

R-68-A and B and R-69 and ask you if those are 

copies of the checks you have produced on E-167-2, 

the amounts of money claimed on tl:lese claims? 

Yes, sir, they were. 
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And you have the originals in the courtroom, is 

that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: We make the request to 

return the originals. 

THE MASTER: Granted. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I now -- strike that. 

Your Honor -- strike that. 

Let me go back to R-62 and ask you to take 

R-62, which is B-232, the claim number, is that 

correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Is there anything in the jacket itself? 

Yes, sir, two orders from the Welfare Department 

of Duval County. 

I will ask you as to R-62 and the enclosures, 

were these in the jacket B-232 at the time you 

found them to bring here under this Court's 

instructions? 

Yea, sir. 

I will ask you if there was any other document 

in that jacket other than those two welfare orders? 

No, sir. 

No other documents? 

No, sir. 
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Q All right, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I would like 

to have these marked. 

THE MASTER: I think they ought to be 

R-62-A and B. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I agree, that would 

be the best way. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

documents were marked R-62-A and B for 

identification.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I hand you what has been 

marked R-62-A and B and R-62 and ask you if that 

is the complete package you found? 

Yes, sir. 

And I believe you are the assistant to the 

auditor of Duval County? 

Yes, sir. 

And you would have custody of the recorda you are 

holding in your hand and identified by Claim 

No. B-232 and these tie in with R-62-A and B and 

R-62? 

Yes, sir. 

I will ask you if thoae recorda are kept in your 
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files as your official -- in your official 

capacity in Duval County? 

Yes, sir. 

And there is nothing to indicate they are not 

true and correct records, is that correct? 

Correct. 

And those are the ones you used to make up E-167-2 

and Claim No. B-232? 

Yes, sir. 

And those are further R-62 and R-62-A and B, the 

data from which yo4 took the information on E-167-~, 

which you told us about yesterday? 

It is. 

So we have the warrant number 3913 that appears 

where? 

Right here. 

The warrant number, and I am showing you E-167-2, 

and the warrant number can be found at R-67-B? 

Yes. 

And the amount of the warrant number can be 

found also there, is that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And the designation of the fund, as you show on 

E-167-2, can be found on R-67-B? 

Yes. 
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And the date of the warrant is also found there --

can also be found on R-67-B? 

Yes, sir. 

Is that same thing correct, without going through 

each and every one of the items, that appear in 

Claim No. B-232? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: All r~~ht. Your Honor, if 

66, and all the sub-nart~, all th~ cont~nts 

hav~ not been orfered into evidence yPt. I 

am sure that th~y will. be off~red. I would 

ltke at thfs time to nose the ob1ection as 

to the~_r offer. 

WP h8ve tntroduc~d fntn Pvfdence som~ 

cross-~nd~~ r~rds, among thosP arP for the 

year 1975. What is beln~ a~ked of thfs 

wltnes~ go~s to 1975 and a~ the Court will 

reNill, an:lMr. Mftchell will rec~tll from 

e~amf.natfon of Mr. Meek and from thf" wi.t-

nesses on the Cash Store, these narticular 

claims right here are not even fn ~uestlon. 

We haven't contended that Jud~e Carrillo 

recei~ ~tny benefit from them. 

r ~ay that this e~amfnatfon is not 
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rrlrvant to ~ny t~~uP tn tht~ esse. Wr 

have twenty minute~ t~ go throuph document~ 

that do not rrlatr to the law~uft thus far. 

I think >t ha~ taken unnr~es~ary time of 

this Court tn ~o through the~e documents, 

oarticularlv with four other file folder~ 

or ~laim 1ackets which have nothing to do 

has any hen~fft fTom. 

If there fs ~ny relevancr, I would 

1f_ke to knOl•' ft. 

THE MA~TER: What f~ the relevance~ 

MR. MITCHELL: I had ob1ected to E-167-?. 

whtch wa~ frrrlevant. The oh1Pction was 

levrled and I understood that they wPre 

relevant ~o conseouently I felt lfkr I 

wanted to go back into them to show as a 

matter of fact that Judge Carrillo had 

nothtn2 to dn with them. 

They had abqolutely no connectton 

~fth Judve Carrillo and ff Counsel ls 

wfllfng tn c;tinulate it, I cAn ~hnrten 

the ~ro~edure rtght now. 

THE MASTER: I admitted 167 as I 

rec8ll c;fmoly as bein~ ~n e~amole. so to 
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~n~ak, of th~ cros~-tnd~x msd~ by Mr. 

Hino1o~s and that fs as I understood ft 

what ~t wss offered for. Am I correct? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sfr, th~ 167, and it's 

~ub-osrts ~~r~ offered to show 

THE MASTER: Five csrds. 

MR, ODAM: YPs, sir, tlte cttrds show 

on. them certsfn checks thst were issued. 

Now thP r~levancy obviously ~oes as far as 

w~ ar~ concerned, and as far ss the entfre 

docum~nt fs roncern~d as to those claim 

numbers which "t11ve b~Pn introduced into 

evfdenc~. and arP s nart of what, E-55 thus 

far. 

ThPy show 11s to these nartfcular cl11~m 

number~ that there was a ch~ck issued from 

th~re. As to the othPrs, which by th~ir 

s ilenre from th~ Atrli.er r~cord there is no 

dis~uted issue too, that was the ~uroose 

to show by those cards thst on thos~ cl11ims 

that there were checks fssuPd and, therefore, 

there fs sfmnly evidence fn rross-tnde~ --

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, then I'll 

stat~ this, Our oosft'fon h111s always been 

that Jud~e Carrillo cannot be disnualffied, 
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rPnrimandPd or rPmov~d ir any act occurrin~ 

orior tn JAnunry lRt, 1975. Th~se it~ms ar~ 

all in 197~ end thP ournn~P of my tntroduc-

in~ thPm is to show that th~y havP no connPc-

all ClPofus Gonzalez, at a time lon~ after 

he l~ft thP ~moloyment both of the Farm and 

Ranch and nf the county and there were be 

no ~rnunds in E-167-2 for any reorimand or 

any imoro~er conduct on Jud~e Carrillo and 

if counsel for the Examiner fs willin~ to 

stinulate such a fact, t~en, Your Honor, I 

will move on ~lad1y. 

MR. ODAM: I certainly think that we 

could take " break, and thosP clAim 1ackets 

rt~ht thPrP, ~o throu~h them and I am sure 

be orPnared to sttoulate that --

THE MASTER: Excuse me, do you stinu• 

late that claim jackets reoresented by R•62, 

6,, 64 and 65 And 66 and thP checks that 

have been marked oayln~ those claim jackets 

whfch are R-67-A and B, R-68-A and B, and 

R-69, as well as the contents, one of which 

h~s b~en marked R-62~A and P have no rele-

vance in any cont~~t or count in the amend~d 
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MR. MITC»ELL: Or formal. 

THE MASTER: Or formal noti.c~ of 

MR. ODAM: YPs, ~ir. 

THE MASTER: DoPS that takP care of 

you, Mr. MitchP.ll? 

MR. MITCHELL: It surP does. 

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Htno1nsa, thank you 

very much. 

I want to offer the documents. Jud~e 

Mey~rs, ~o that anyon~ readtn~ the record 

will know the full f.moort of tl,f' stioulat~on 

and I ~ill oass the witness and by my offf'r, 

I am ~oin~ to offer R-62, 6,, 64, 65, 66, 67-A 

an~ B, 68-A and B, and 69. 

THE MASTER An~ you have also marked 

R-62-A an~ B, which fs thP contf'nts of 

R-62 and without markin~ tl,em I take it you 

ar~ offerin~ the content8 of R-6', R-64, 

R-65 and R-66. 

MR. MITCT~LL: YPs, sir. 

THE MASTER: WPll, for the ouroosf' of 

~l,owtn, what this is all about, they are 

~tdmitttod. 

MR. MITCHELL: Th8nk you, Jud~e Meyers. 
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THE MASTER: But thf' ,;tfouhtion ts 

that t~ey have nothtn~ tn dn w~th the 

Judicial Ouallftcations Cnmmfs,;i.on count 

a~atnst Jud~f' Carrillo .. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I dn have one more 

(IUf'stf.nn. 

THE MASTER: All r~ght. 

EXAMINATION CONTIN~ 

BY MR. MITCHEL1: 

Q Mr. Hinojosa, I believe further I had asked you --

MR, MITCHELL: S tri.kP thl'lt. 

Q You would also be the custodian, would you not, 

of the 1ackPts, the data on chPcks, is,;ued by 

Duval Countv to the Benavldf's Im,lement and 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Would you not? 

A Yf's, sir. 

Q Now, I beH.f!'ve I asked you to ascf"rtafn if 

those were in thPir re~ularly -- fn thetr rP~u-

lar ,tacP and wpre y& able to find thpm? That 

is to show us, thP chPcks~ the volume of checks 

issued by Duval County to the Benavi.des Imftlement 
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and Hardwar~. of Benavides, Te~as. 

A They have heen removed from the office, sir, the 

1~tst yPar or sn. 

Q Could you find them~ 

A No, sir, I could not. 

Q Could you ffnd evidence of who has removed them? 

A ·No, si.r. I don't have an ide~t. Only two a~en• 

c{es, the Interal Revenue Servi.ce and the Attorney 

General's offfce, the Te~as Attorney General's 

offi.ce. 

Q They are not where tlley would normally be, how-

ever, in the 

A On HlP.. 

Q On file? 

A Yes, si.r. 

Q All rl~ht. 

(Discussfon off the record.) 

.Q Let me ask you, Mr. Hinojosa, when you went 

over --

MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. 

Q There has been some reference i.n the record an~ 

I thfnk we have some clariffcati.on, as a matter 

of fact many of the books .and records hav~ been 

removed from the Duval County courthouse ~tnd 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q And that f~ a building that used tn be a bank? 

A YPs, ~ i.r. 

Q And what bank wa~ that buitdfn~? 

A First State Bank of San Dfe~o at one tfmP, I 

bel i.eve. 

Q Yes, there ~~ no longer a bank therP, is it, 

~r. Hinojosa? 

A No, ~ i r. 

Q Y"u havf' bt>Pn 8 d ttzen for that -- of that county 

for 8 l,n~ well, your whole lifetime, have 

you not? 

A The or,oerty w8s bou~ht by the county and --

Q Renovatf'd? 

A RPnovated fnr county use . 

Q Rt~ht, and today --

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I would object 

to thf' relevancy nf thfs. I would stt~ulate 

that therf' art> certai.n chf'cks issued by 

Duval County, some of w~fch are -- ori~tnals 

of which are on the counsel table as well 

as tn the bo~ here. 

I would stt~ulate furthf'r, if nf'cessary, 

that cert~ttnly the Attorney General's office 
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h~~ bePn -- has obta~nPd from Mr. Hinojosa 

and by Mr. MPPk's prevtou~ testimony, we 

obt~fnPd checks, most of which which arf.' 

re1evant to this ~roceeding or fn evidPnce, 

and I sef.' no necessity to determine that 

they werP taken by the Attorney General's 

office, which they were, to bf.' put into 

evidence in thi~ boY. I don't see the 

ourpo~e of that. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, all ri~ht then, 

I re~uest that you deliver over for examine-

tion all of the Benavides Imnlement and 

Hardware chPcks issued by -- issued by 

Duval County and the Benavides Independent 

School Di c;tri.ct, Mr. Odam. 

MR. ODAM: For what ournosf.'~ 

MR. MITCHELL: For thf.' ouroo~e of 

detf.'rmfnfng the full volumP of businf'SS that 

Mr. CoulfnJ! has done with th11tt operatton 

down therf>. 

MR. ODAM: For what ourpose~ 

MR. MITCHELL: To show on that 

THE MASTER: Well now, I don't really 

know "'ht're we are her.t', You are su~~esti.ng 

that tht' Attorney GPnt'ral has certatn 
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or~~tnal chPck~ that it nbtain~d, I take 

it, from th~ treasurer of the county of 

Duval? 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud~e ~~yers --

THE MASTER: I don't su~nose you want 

them 11ll, Mr. Mi.tchf"ll, tf you sn~clfy wh11t 

you want and he has them, t~?n I would be 

inclined to order them cle1i.vered. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I, for th~ nurnose 

of the Court's order, say this: I say that 

the Attorney Geheral hasn't any business 

in this liti~ation. I have said that by my 

motion to dtsnuatlfy. I don't think a 

judicial disnua1ification or a Qualiftca-

tion nroc~dure, if It nlease this Court, 

has to be couched tn terms nf the Attorney 

General or law enforcement. I don't think 

that is th• essence, that fq my first uart. 

Secondly, I have a ri~ht h~re to 

f.moeach Mr. Coul i.nJr, Brother Coulln~, and 

to do so, I have to have those checks 

because the Attorney General has selectively, 

throu~h his task force that is another 

thin~ I was ~oin~ to.show, this is a 

ohysical size of a ht~hly Intense task 
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fore~ o~erat{on be~tnntn~ the ffrst oart 

of th{~ y~ar and thfs ~~ -- thPSP are 

~ublfc documents that they have fn thp{r 

!)osseRqfon, ,ublf.c documP.nts, Your Honor, 

that they have in their control that I 

should be entitlPd to look at for the 

benefit of my client. 

THE MASTER: Why do you call them 

oublic documents? 

MR. MITCHELL: They are recordR that 

are filed wi.th Lhe treasury of the county. 

THE MASTER: Cheek~ ts what you are 

!'!&yin~. 

MR. MITCHELL: Sure. 

THE MASTER: Returned checks? 

MR. ~ITCHELL: Rf~ht, and also, Your 

H~nor, under the law, those jackets are filed 

wfth th~s man's office, the auditor, and 

they are maintained under the law in those 

offices for these constant audits re~utred 

by the statute. 

Now to say, because the Attorney 

General has made an incursion into that 

county, and ~eized them, certainly any 

fnformatton -- for a iud~e, cannot see thPm 
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and be nut to thP task of why, why, why, 

~epms to be ~tretchfn~ ffr~t of all the 

~tatutP and thfs orocedure end to bP ~ulte 

frank w~th the Court, end the rPcord, I say 

this ~~ a -- this orocedure, Your Honor, fs 

a judlcfaJ ~uallficetlon and ~hould not be 

one that fs criminal or nua~f-crfmfnal in 

It's overtones and that fs what It is 

amountin~ to and I want the rPcords for thP 

ournose of eyaminatfon. 

THE MASTEk: You just said it should 

not be one that fs criminal or ~uasi-criminal. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's ri~ht. 

THE MASTER': I thou~ht your oosition 

was it was criminal or ~uasf-crimlnal. 

MR. MITCHELL: It Is, Jud~e MeyE>rs. 

THE MASTER: It should not be. 

MR. MIT CHELL: That Is ri~ht. 

It should not be and that fs why I 

filed my motion at the outset, I am not 

~oin~ to make a bi~ issue of it and unduly 

extend the oroceedtn,, but I would like to 

havP. tho~e~navides Imolement and Hardware 

checks for 1974, 7,, 72 and 71, those are 

the ones that are relevant. 
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MR. ODAM: Your Honnr, a~ to t~P 

~tstem~nt, a~ to how many ch~ck~ RrP 

frsnkly, oPr~nnally, I do not knnw. I 

will ~t{oulRt~ as a matt~r nf nublic record 

that ther~ ~~ membersof the Attorney GenerRl's 

office located fn Duval County at the court-

house 11nn~x. 

I don't taow how many chf'cks they heve, 

but what I do say is that the checks that 

ar~ relevant to this oroceedfn~ 11re sftt~np 

there in thst f~le box, admitted as evidencf' 

and ar~ thf' ch~cks that are relevant and we 

hAve obtainf'd those and '1Ut them into evi-

dence and whatever else there is, I don't 

know i.f th~y extst, and if they do, I don't 

know what th~ relevancy is t~ ~o tnto them, 

~xceot to take more time and to ftll uo thf' 

record. 

THE ~STER: Well, I thtnk thAt it is 

oro0 er to re~uest of Counsel any document 

that he has fn his file here in the hearin~ 

room but if you want somf'thfn~ else that i.s 

in Duval County, it seems to me the aooro-

0riate way to ~et it is by subooena, which 

I will ~ladly issue if you will stmoly oresent 
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MR. MITCHELL: YE>s, Ju~~e. we woul~ 

be ~lad to dn that and I su~~OSE' In viE'w of 

this wftnes~' statement, if I sub~oenaed 

hfm ft wouldn't do any ~ood. He h~s examined 

hfs files and hasn't been able to find them 

I su~!)ose. 

THE MASTER: You subooena, I suooo~e, 

whoever is In that Duval County task force 

office. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yeos. !-!ir. 

THE MASTER: Excuse m~>, just a second, 

off thf> record. 

(Discuss~on off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e Meyers. 

THE MASTER: All ri.l!ht, you can do that 

at the recess, ~et a subnoena. Do you know 

who It is down there? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I have no f.dea, Jud~e 

Meyers. I suooose I will subnoena thE> 

Attorney General of the StatP of Texas. 

MR. ODAM: You mi~~t try John Blanton. 

THE MASTER: I unnPrstand he Is a 
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cou!dn of yours? 

MR, ODAM: Yes, ~ir. I don't know 

if that is literal or figurat'tve. Mr. 

Blanton told me he was a kissing cousin of 

M!';, Levatino. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge Meyers, may I 

~sk t~e Court for t~e ~uroose of being 

informed, am I orecluded f~her to show 

that there -- that the task force and, again, 

I am offering the testimony so to sneak 

underlying some of these ~retrial motions, 

that ~e filed, a task force in olace or will 

Counsel accommodate me in the record and the 

Court by making a statement as to what --

I 11m <'ertainly willing to takP Mr. Odam' s 

statement of what is going on in terms of 

the task force. 

That It has got a location, it is a 

highly Intense ooeration and it is attendPd 

by law enforcement from the D.P.S. to the 

Te~as Ran~ers to the I.R.S. 

MR. ODAM: Is this a ~ue~tlon or is 

this a sta~ement? 
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THE MASTER: He is askin~ for a sti~u-

lRtion. 

MR. MITCHELL: I c Rn orove i. t, Mr. 

Odam, but I don't want to tak~ un the time. 

MR. ODAM: Well, our ~osi.ti.on on that 

has been w~, the record is dear as to what 

it t~. that poes to oretria1 matters which 

need not be taken u~ at this time- Rnd I would 

orefer not to stioulat~ to it for the 0uroo~e 

that, amon, othe~ thin~s. I do not think ft 

is relevant to this oroceoed'n~ and to be~an 

stioulat{n~ to the Attorney G~neral's office 

~oin~ down there to helo at the reQuest of 

the Di!'ltri.ct Attorney on somf' criminal 

casf's, to stioulate to that would aooear to 

make it some-how relevant to these oroceedin~s 

and I doubt that is ~oin~ to be the position 

taken later on, I don't know. 

So the answer is, I do not thfnk it 

would be aoorooriate to ~o tnto those 

matters at this time as oreviously stated 

and, therefore, we wf11 not stfoulate to it. 

I wf.ll stioullltl' that "'fr. Blantnn ft~; 

a oerson that can be subooeneed for thesP 

chl'cks, if there arE' ttny that Mr. Hi.no1osa 
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said has b~~n turn~d over to the Attorney 

General's office, which are the on~s I know 

about t~at are in evidence, they are rele-

vant. 

THE :\lo\ASTER: In answer to your ~u~stion, 

you ~ave not undertaken, I don't think, to 

J!O into that. You are not o~ecluded. If 

there is an ob1ect4on and it fs sustained, 

then, of course, you can make a bill. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Jud~e Meyers. 

\,, 

" 
-------------------------------~'~ 
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Where is this building that the Attorney General's 

office is located in in Duval County in relation-

ship with the official courthouse? 

Well, I uould say it is about four blocks away 

on Main Street in San Diego. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, we -- in light 

of the Court's instructions, we would object 

to this line of questioning, that it is 

relevant to the pleas in abatement, which the 

Court has pointed out earlier, which are 

points of fact :o be found by the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission or this Master. 

They are not relevant to the case, but 

relevant to the pleas in abatement. 

THE ~~STER: Are you offering this on 

the merits, Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, for the full 

spectrum. 

THE MASTER: What is the relevancy on 

the merits? 

MR. MITCHELL: Again, the relevancy on 

the merits would be in terms of the due 

process input, that is, that this procedure 

is not a properly conducted procedure. I 

would not be wasting the time of the Court, 
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if it was not relevant. As the Court knows, 

I am not here to take up the Court's time. 

I think it is relevant to the record to show 

that the Task Force is there and I don't 

think a disqualifications procedure -- and 

this is really a historical procedure, and 

if He permit it, as attorn,.ys and lawyers and 

judges, then we are going to set a precedent 

for a judge in the future that is going to 

be hard to live with. 

I would l~ke to have it said that 

Arthur Mitchell, in this procedure, did say 

something and that is why I am trying to be 

careful. I am speaking, and I hope to the 

record, and I say this procedure, as it is 

presently conducted, denies due process. 

There is a situs out of which it is recorded. 

MR. ODAM: All of that just stated by 

Mr. Mitchell is stated very eloquently in 

his pleadings and it is stated in the merits 

as to whether the Cash Store received money. 

It is set out in writing on the plea in 

abatement, and in light of the statute, 

which I won't go into, my objection is that 

it is relevant to the pleas in abatement and 
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not to the case on the merits. 

We would ask that the witness not 

continue to answer the questions or that it 

be done on a Bill of Exception, if it be 

developed at all, at an earlier date. 

THE MASTER: You mean a later date? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, later date. 

Some of this had been to the Texas Supre~e 

Court and that is the earlier date I was 

thinking of. 

We have some degree of instructions 

from the Texas Supreme Court saying we are 

not going to look at that. 

MR. MITCHELL: And that is why I think 

I owe a duty to present it at this level. 

I can do it on a Bill of Exception, if the 

Court wishes. 

THE MASTER: Go ahead and develop it 

and I will rule on it after it is presented. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Hinojosa, the building is 

a three story building? 

No, two story. 

What is that building called? 

The old bank building. 
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The old bank building, on the second floor, has 

been refin:f.shed and the county attorney's office 

is located there? 

Yes, sir. 

And there is a large library also located there? 

Yes, sir. 

And now, I direct your attentior to the library 

and other offices and ask you if the Texas 

Rangers are in that office? 

Yes, sir. 

Have you seen Range .. Woods and Ranger Martinez 

and Ranger Powell come and go out of these 

offices? 

They have their headquarters in that building, 

yes. 

They have been in Kingsville, are attached to the 

Kingsville branch, and have been assigned to that 

office? 

Yes, sir. 

Ani have you seen the staff of the Attorney 

General, Mr. Blanton, in those offices? 

Yes, sir. 

And you have seen Mr. Max Flusche there? 

Yes, sir. 

And Mr. Odam, have you seen him in the office? 
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I don't recall. 

How about Miss Levatino? 

I don't recall. 

Also the district attorney of the county, Mr. Gue1ra 

and his investigator work out of that office? 

Yes, sir. 

And the county attorney, Mr. Ri~hard Garcia, 

operates out of that office? 

Yes, sir. 

And that -- strike that. 

These folks ha.-e maintained in that office 

records out of the Duval County courthouse? 

Yes, sir. 

And they relate to many, many things which 

relate to Judge Carrillo and all of the 

commissioners and -- well, the whole spectrum? 

Yes, sir. 

And it makes it difficult for you to do 

business? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you have anything left in your office at the 

courthouse? 

Not much. 

And when the Court here instructed you to, 

yesterday afternoon, to go get the data, you 
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produced here today, where did you go to get the 

Benavides Implement and Hardware items? 

Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

Yes, where did you go? 

Cash Store, you mean? 

Yes. 

I went to the old bank building 

And those records are what you produced and were 

there, were they not? 

Yes, sir. 

And were you able ~J ascertain whether the checks 

for the Benavides Implement and Hardware were 

there, also? 

I don't have any idea. Besides the Attorney 

General, the I.R.S. has a lot of records, too, 

I believe, of the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware Company and other records. I don't 

recall what other records or ledgers and books 

are there. 

I believe I missed that. 

The I.R.S. people have been out there in and 

out of that old bank building, have they not? 

I don't know about the I. R. S. 

For the record, you were not able to find and 

produce here any of the checks we deem relevant 
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of the Benavides -- from Duval County payable 

to Benavides Implement and Hardware or from the 

school dlstrict to the Benavides Implement and 

I don't know anything about the Benavides 

Independent School District. 

How about the county checks to the Benavides 

Imp lemen': and Hardware '1 

We had them in the office at one time, but either 

the I.R.S. or the Attorney General have those 

records no~o1. 

All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we make a 

formal request, if that -- the Attorney 

General -- if he has them, produce those 

l-Thich he has for the notice which go from 

'69, '70, '71, '72, '73, and 1 74, the 

Duval County checks to the Benavides 

Implement and Hardware. 

THE MASTER: Well, if he has them here 

in his file, I will ask him to produce them. 

If you are saying the Attorney General 

and his some one hundred lawyers, or maybe 

more 

MR. ODAM: One fifty. 
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THE MASTER: Yes, if you are calling 

on all of them to produce that, then that 

is denied. You have been told a man named 

John Blanton may have some of those 

instruments and I will sign a subpoena for 

those. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank :·ou, Judge. 

I have no further questions, Your 

Honor. 

MR. ODAM: Mr. Hinojosa, I certainly 

appreciate you~ coming over here on a short 

notice yesterday and today, and I don't think 

we have any further questions at this time, 

either. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Hinojosa, 

and you are free to go. 

\.who is your next witness? 

Do you want to call Mr. Bates? 

MR.ODAM: Yes, I saw him stick his head 

in a minute ago, he is here. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, that is fine. 
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JAMES S. BATES, JR., 

2 recalled as a witness, having been previously sworn, 

3 testified as follows, to-wit: 

4 

5 THE MASTER: You are reminded, Mr. Bates, 

6 you are still under oath. 

7 THE WITNESS: All rigLt, sir. 

B THE MASTER: You may proceed, Mr. 

9 Mitchell. 

10 

11 

12 E X A M I N A T I 0 N -----------
13 

14 BY MR. MITCHELL: 

15 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Good morning. 

Good morning. 

I believe you were sworn on the stand on the 

1st of December, were you not? 

Yes. 

And as a result of the examination on that date, 

a request was made of you, that in your official 

capacity, to check and see whether there was a 

signature card for the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware and a loan ledger sheet for that 
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Benavides Implement and Hardware or Rudolfo 

Couling and, if there were not, if you would be 

prepared to make a statement to this Court that 

there would not be a signature card and loan 

ledger sheet? 

Yes, sir. 

Can you tell the Court what you have done for 

us and what you have brought back? 

I have here the original photocopies of the 

original documents on file with our bank. 

I have here a photocopy of the signature 

card of the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

Company. 

Can you produce it, please? 

Yes, sir. 

Let me ask you -- you have handed me the two, 

they are the same, one is a copy of the other? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Would you mark this? 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was marked R-70 for 

identification.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I hand you what has been marked 
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~-70 and this is a copy of the signature card 

for the Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

Yes. 

And it appears -- strike that. 

These are kept in the regular course of 

business of the bank, are they not? 

Yes, sir. 

And of course, under the statute, the law 

requires the contract of deposit show the persons 

who are authorized to draw on the account? 

Yes. 

And no other person can? 

Yes, sir. 

And the signature appearing on that exhibit is 

what? 

R.~~uling. 
MR. MITCHELL: I offer it, Your Honor, 

R-70. 

THE MASTER: R-70 is admitted. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) In the examination of the 

records for the signature card, was an examination 

made for the full time period to see if they had 

been changed or any other authority presented to 

the bank? 

Yes, sir, I checked with my head bookkeeper and 
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we went through the entire files and could find 

no other signature card on file anywhere. 

In your capacity with the bank, if a signature is 

written on a check by any other person, not 

authorized to write on that account, what are 

the instructions to the people of the bank, in 

regard to this account, if someone else other than 

R. N. Couling were to sign a check on Benavides 

Implement and Hardware? 

If the signature is not authorized, it is returned, 

if the signature i~ not on file. If they call us 

on a telephone and say I have a new partner, put 

him on the signature file, he has to sign the 

signature file before we honor the check. 

I will ask you, you don't have a special form for 

corporations and partnerships where you have 

multiple signatures? 

Yes, we have three different forms for the various 

corporations and also personal, a man and wife. 

Our receptionist doesn't always get the right 

card out, but it is signed and that is the main 

thing.· 

And Mr. Couling is the only one that had authority 

on this account? 

Yes, sir, I checked with my bookkeeper and asked 
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her if she remembered anything else on that 

account and she said no. 

Now, if you would, explain that other document. 

This is a liability ledger sheet which is a 

reflection of the loans made by Mr. Couling. 

The liability ledger sheet, is it different from 

the bank account, the regular checking account? 

Yes. 

And it shows only the loans? 

Yes. 

And it is distingu~~hed from the checking account 

in that regard? 

Yes, sir. 

And the Court instructed you, I believe, to make 

a search to see if there were any liability sheets 

and it was to that request you produce this 

document? 

Yes, sir. The three of us went through the files 

and this is all we could find. 

MR. MITCHELL: Let the record reflect 

the witness handed me two copies of the same 

document, the liability loan ledger for 

R. N. Couling. 

R-71. 

I would like to have this marked as 
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(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was marked R-71 for 

identification.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I hand you now what has been 

marked R-71 and ask you if that is the liability 

loan ledger on R. N. Couling? 

Yes, sir. 

And it was the document found in the bank in a 

regular place to which it would be and it appears 

to be authentic anu proper on its face? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer it, Your Honor, 

as R-71. 

THE MASTER: It is admitted. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document previously marked as R-71 was 

admitted into evidence.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) May I ask you, for the 

purpose of interpretation, the liability loan 

ledger does not have the note itself? 

No, sir. 

And behind it would be any collateral documents? 
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No, sir, if the note is still in the bank; it 

would be in our collateral file. 

2417 

What you are saying is, if that note were still 

outstanding, you could go to your commercial loan 

files, pick that out and tie it to the loan 

ledger? 

Yes, sir. 

And the note would reflect the amount of payments 

and the date and whether it was collateralized? 

Yes, sir. 

And once it is pai~ off, the liability ledger is 

credited to show the full payment? 

It would not necessarily show the interest and 

other charges unless they were on the face amount 

of the note, but the payments would be shown. 

But once paid, the note is marked paid and 

delivered to the debtor? 

Yes, sir. 

So the bank would not keep a copy of the note? 

No, sir. 

And it would be reflected in the ledger, however? 

Yes. 

And the other supporting documents? 

Yes. 

All right. Do you have those here? 
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A Yes, I have our permanent loan files. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

MR. MITCHELL: Let me ask that be marked 

as R-72. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was marked R-72 for 

identification.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Now, you were about to tell us 

about a document in the permanent loan file, and 

can you tell us wh ... t that is and tell us where 

it is kept? 

This is typed off the face of the original note. 

It shows the note number, the due date, the 

officer and the type of interest and insurance and 

the amount of the note, who the note was made to, 

his address and the endorser or collateral. 

And the person typing from the original note is 

under instructions to make an exact copy of the 

information needed on those notes?· 

Yes. 

And these are overseen by the State Banking 

Commission and also by the officers of the bank? 

Yes. 

Is that a copy of one kept in your bank? 
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A Yes. 
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Q 
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And it is kept in the usual and customary manner 

and ordinary manner? 

Yes. 

And it is found in the bank records? 

Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: We off~r R-72. 

THE MASTER: R-72 is admitted. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document prev~uusly marked as R-72 was 

admitted into evidence.) 

(By Mr. Mitchell) R-72 is related to R-71, the 

check? 

The liability ledger. 

I am sorry, how does R-72 relate to R-71, if it 

does? 

The liability loan ledger reflects all the loan 

transactions for this customer throughout his 

history throughout the bank. R-72 reflects an 

individual loan. 

Let me ask you some questions about that. 

The borrower is R. N. Couling? 

Yes, sir. 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 
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A 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

N .vember, 1972, the original document. 

The .::.vidence of the debt, is that shown to be a 

note he executed a note to the bank? 

tes, sir. 

And the transaction is further commensurated in 

your bank by R-71 and R-72? 

'lea, sir. 

And do the documents show how many loans were 

made? 

R-71 shows that he u.ade one loan. He made four 

credits to it and one renewal extension. 

And does R-71 show when the loan was paid, if it 

was paid? 

Yes, sir. 

And does it show whether the loan was collateraliz~d? 

Yes. 

What does it show? 

That is the reason I brought R-72. R-71 shows a 

chattel mortgage and R-72 shows F.S., which is 

financial statement. 

Of the borrower? 

Yes, or the endorser, if there is an endorser, 

but in this case, there is not. 

Where a note is guaranteed by a third person, is 
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there a symbol placed on the bank ledger sheet 

indicating a guarantee, Mr. Bates? 

Yes, si.r. 
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Q All rt~ht, I'll 8sk you, looktn~ at 71 and 72, 

2 th~ document~ that you hAv~ and from your o~r-

3 sonal knowled~e ~atned i'n Pl!'ltminin~ thi.s f{le, 

can you tell th{s Court whether or not there was 

5 a ~uarantee on this loan? 

6 A Y~s. ~{r, R-71 refl~cts '-' chattel mort~a~e. R-72 

7 r~flect~ that th~tt chattel mort~a~e wAS a ftnan-

8 ctal statem~nt and I have a cooy of the financial 

9 ~tatement that was used. 

10 Q w~ submt t -- wPll, null that out thfm. 

11 MR. MITCHE:L: May I havP tt marked a~ 

12 R-

~ A Front and b~tck, two front and backs. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

I!J 

20 

21 

23 

(MarkPd for td~ntffi'catton as Exhlbft 

R-7~.) 

Q I'll hand you what has been mark~d as Exhibit 

R-71 ~tnd ask you tf that aoo~ars t~ be a oart of 

the official file of th~ Ftrst State Bank and 

Trust Com0 any of Rio Grande Ctty und~r date of 

November 1st, 1972, showtn~ the financial condi-

tion of the Benavides Im0 1ement and Hardware 

Comoany at Benavides, Texas, Mr. Bates? Is that 

document --

A Okay, this ts a ffnanctat statement submitted by 
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Mr. Rudolfo M. Crulfn~ lfsti.n~ hi.R busi.ness 

states his tyoe of business is ranchin~ and hard-

war~ and i.mnlements. 

Q All rf~~t. and t~is ts 

A Thts ouroorts to be hts personal financial 

statf'mf'nt. 

Q And ft f~ a financial statemPnt that was given 

to the bank pursuant eo the loans that you have 

told.us about aooearing in R-71 and R-72, am I 

corrPct? 

It is dated, I believe, the 1st of 

Wovember and the loans werf' oaid on the 7th of 

November. 

A 1972. 

Q And i.t aooe~rs --

MR. MITCHELL: Strf.ke that. 

Q And tt was on the stren~th and the basis of the 

representations contained in this financial state-

ment being R-7' on which the bank relied in mak-

in~ the loan and no othPr collateral as tt aooears 

from the record, am I correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer R-7', Judge. 
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THE MASTER: Admitt~d. 

2 
(D4scu~~ton off thP r~cord.) 

3 

4 0 A11 ri!!ht, nnw, of cours,, the loan accordi.np: 

s to R-71, it was for thtr~five hundred dollars, 

6 am I correct? 

7 A YPs, ~ir. 

8 Q And, of course, Mr. Coultn~ ~howed on November 

9 the lst, 1972, fiv~ thousand dollars cash on hand. 

10 three thousand dollars accounts receivable, elPv~n 

11 thousand -- ei~hte~n thousand dollars worth of 

12 m~rchandise at cost, am I corr~ct? 

13 A Y P s , s i r • 

U Q Furniture and ftxtur~s. fiv~ hundrPd thousand 

15 and 

1& A No, ff.v~ thousand. 

17 Q Five thousand and two hundred thousand dollars 

18 worth of real estate owned? 

~ A Yes, str. 

20 Q Machinery and t>(IU{l)ment twenty-ffvt> hundred 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

and, I believe, five thousand. With tht> rt>verse 

stde of R-7' containing hts affidavit and the 

statt>ment that the fnre~oin~ are reoresentations 

that are the basts of reltarice by the bank, am 

t correct? 
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A Yes, si.r, WP u!'IP the!'le i.n normAl bank!n~ l'roce-

2 durP and to back U!'l uo, wP u~• 18 U.S.C., 

3 Spctton 1014. 

~ 1 G So tl-e t is a fpdpral violl!ltion for th_,r., t,... bP 

5 8 misreoresentl!ltion in the l)rocurement l!lnd 

6 l!ldvancemPnt of 8 cred~t nf a bl!lnk thl!lt is insured 

7 by the F,D.I.C. on the basis of his statement in 

8 thO!'IP aoolications. am I co~rect? 

9 A Ye!'l, sir. 

10 

(Discus!'lion off the record.) 
11 

~ Q R-71, of course, has a orovtRton, a "lace for 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

20 

21 

24 

thP inclusion of all business interests~ assets, 

et CPtPra, does ft not? 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I bPlieve thi~ 

is reoPtitious. The Exhibit soe~tks for 

itself, Pvery item, tt tells what it is, 

the enttre rec~rd. We don't have to ~o 

throu~h ft, I don't believe. 

THE MASTER: I su!'ltain thl!lt objection. 

Q Thank you, Mr. BatP!'I. Is there any Pvidence, 

Mr. Bates, in R-70, 71, 72, 7', that there was 

any ~uaran.tee executed tn connection with. this 

loan from the Flr!'lt State aank and Trust Comoany 

tn Rudotfo Coulfn~? Is there any evtdence that 
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therp was a RUarantee ts~ued by Ramtro Carrillo, 

0. P. Cauillo, or anybody el8P for that matter? 

A No, str. All thP evidence ournorts to be Rudolfo 

M. toultn~ and the bank. 

Q All right, is there any evidenre in the bank's 

file to show that the Benavides Imnlement and 

Har~war~ Comnany was other than ~ sole oroprtetor-

~hiu and owned and ouerated by R. M. Couling? 

A No, sir. 

Q And has Mr. Cou1inP- and Benavides Imulement anrl 

Hardwa~e matntainerl an account wfth your bank un 

to date, do you know? 

A Un until sometime this summer was the last time 

that r -- you are talking about the checking 

ac<:'ount now? 

Q YeFo, sir. 

A Sometimf' this summer, I forget the exact date. 

Q And by thts summer, we arP talking about 1975? 

A Yf's, sir. 

Q All right, commf'nctn~ with the dates of R-70 

and to datP, I wfll ask you the same ~uesttons, 

is thPre any evidence in your bank files showin~ 

any chan~e of the busines~ entity to a partner• 

A No, sir, we checked evPrythin~ that I could think 
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of. 

2 Q Any evidence on your bank file of any ~uarantep 

3 from 0. P. C8rrf.llo, Ram1.ro Cerr~llo or l'lnybody 

s A Nl'\. i!1 r r. 

6 Q Any evidence on your bank rPcords of any control 

7 over thP Benav{dp~ Im~lement l'lnd Herdwl'lre or R.M. 

8 CouHn~ or Rudolfo Coultn~'s bu11iness by anybody 

9 but htm? 

10 A No. s tr. 

II Q He !I that ~ot anything to do w-t th me --

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

23 

24 

2S 

MR. MITCHELL: Eyeuse me, Your Honor, 

may I addrPss the w1.tnes!l? 

THE MASTER: You may talk to him off 

the rPC·ord. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I talk to htm off 

thP record. olease? 

THE MASTER: Yes, 11ir. 

(Dtscus~ton off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: I believe I have no 

furthf'r ouf'sti.ons of thts witness, Jud~e 

THE MASTER: That .h on the rf'eord, I 

take it? 
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MR. MITCHELL: Yf!ls, 1d.r, I 11m ()n thP 

THE:MASTE:R: All riJ!ht, Mr. Od11m. 

~ X A M I N A T I 0 N _ . ...,...,. ..... _______ _ 
B"''.M;R;' .@AM: 

"-'10 · Q .~Y-E".s, ·Mr. B.~ttf!ls, I ,..,O'l"t>ci.ate you comi.n~ back 

11 q -~"-l'r. ·Do' yoUr kttow ·;hether or not Mr. FluschP 

,, 12 

,, A .o, -A'Y'rntruf fttur•t·h1rty ye.sttorday aftf!llmon I found 

I 
I 

~! 
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I ~i~n't mak~ th~ dPadltne ~~ttin~ those rPcords 

tn~~ther. 

Then wh~n I tnld hfm, he said that thPy 

want~d fortv-ffvP ohotocnof~s and --

Q Do you know whitt l"hotocoof.es, cnoi f'S of what'? 

A No, sir, I didn't Ask him, of checks, but I don't 

know "''h"t cht'cks. 

Q AH rip:ht. 

A o~ of what account, but we couldn't have oroducf'd 

thPm this morntnp. anyway. 

Q I ~t'P. What about the 

A Presidt'nt of the bank. 

Q And that ts Mr. -- what is hts first name? 

A Frank L. AndPrson. 

Q All rl~ht, finl'. So you did not, nbvlously, 

from thosE' statE-ments, you did not brin~ thesP 

forty-fivl' chE-cks with you today? 

A (WUnt'ss shakes hE-ad no.) 

Q You havE' a any of R-70 thf'rP bt'forf' you? 

A N~, sfr, they took them off. 

(Handed to thP witness.) 

Q Lookin~ at R-70, whf'n did Mr. Coulinp. st~n this 

si~naturtt card? 

A Thts -- it doesn't reflect a date on it, but it 
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has to be si~ned and tn the ffl~s before the 

first check comes throuJZh when an account is 

onened. 

Q I ~h<.-w you '"hat -- I beliE-ve you brou~h t~eAe 

over yourself, E-162, is that what you are referr-

i_n~ to? 

A Yes, !':ir. 

Q So this -- ~an you tell what date that this 

checkfn~ account E-16'- started uo? 

A The ftrst df'nosit was on Novemb•r the 8th, 1972. 

Q And it is for how m~~h? 

A The first df'oosit was three thousand four hundred 

seventy-three dollars and seventy-five cents. 

Q And then, I beH PVP. your loan led~tor sheet 1 iabi li ty 

shows that there was a loan taken out in --

A Yes, sir, it does --

Q -- in November for thirty-five hundred dollars? 

A Yes, sir, and if I can e~nlain the discrepancy. 

THE MASTER: Go ahead. 

A All rl,ht, I believe. I didn't think of this 

yesterday~ s~ I didn't chtock it on an adding 

machtne, but I believP f.f you will subtract 

twenty-st~ dollar~ and tw~nty-fivt> cents from 

thirty-five hundred dollars you will ~et the 
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actu~l d~onsit to that account. 

ThP twpnty-~iy dollar~ and tw~nty-five cents 

fs life insurance, cr~dit lifp insurance, that 

was out on this 1o~n and that sboutd balanc~ the 

thirty-five hundred dott~rs. 

Q So it ~~ your te~timony that bas~d on your exper-

iPnce in the bank that also -- correction, R-70 

is not dated, that that would be sometime on or 

~~ut the tfme the checkin~ accnunt was opened, 

which would bE' ~rround NovE-mber the 8th? 

A Yes, sir, if it hadn't have b~en, he couldn't 

have cashed any checks. 

Q So t~ltt -- okay, R-70 is not dated. I notice 

over on the ri~hthand side it says tnd{vidual, 

firm or oartnershfo. Y~u mentioned earlier about 

you have different forms tf it is It nartner~hio 

or an individual, is that correct? 

A Yes, sir, we do now. Now, I wasn't with the 

bank tn 72 so I don't know. Maybe at that time 

they only had one form with the blocks in the 

uooer rt~hthand corner. 

Q So any -- so by lookin~ at the card we cannot 

!!li.nce it was not ftlled f.n by the bank or Mr. 

Coulin~. we cannot tell yea or nay if it is an 

fndtvtdual account or a oartnershto account or a 
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ftrm account, i~ th~t corr~ct? 

A Th11t f.s correct, but he is the only nne that has 

the 11uthortty to st~n on tt. 

day, ~nd I think thP comment was made and we can 

clarify this E-162 is the act~vtty. Did you check 

tn dE>terminP, I bpl teve Mr. M'f tel'.ell h1td asked 

you thts, if thert> was any other activit}' other 

than thts" 

I belit>ve Mr. Flusche h11d asked you to just 

check some certain months an~ frnm your testimony 

now aooears that the first sheet ts when it 

actually stArted uo? 

A Yes, sir, I, like I said earliPr, I checked with 

my bed bookkPE>ner who has bPen there about nine 

years, I believe, 11nd st. says th11t that ts the 

only 11ccount we have ever had and it starts 

then and ends wi.th either the last date there 

or uo to date, but the last what ls the last 

date you havP there, sir. 

Q The last date wt> have is balance P.ndf.nl! Decem-

bPr 11, 1974. 

A Well, I think I saw some led~er sheets uo until 

sometf.me around the middle. of this summer, yes-

terday. 
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Q. All ri~ht, 

A But I didn't reAlly look at the dates and I 

don't bell~ve th~re was any activity on It, 

I Am not ~o~n~ to ~wear to th8t, that is -- I 

am ~hoot~n~ off thP too of my head on that oart. 

Q But obviously the first oa~e i.R when tt started? 

A Yt>~, ~ir. 

Q And it went throu~h at least this last oa~e? 

A y .. R. 

Q On R -- correction, R-71, I noti.re th11t tn 

Dt>cember the 18th there was -- I am not too 

familtAr with how to read these bank sheets. 

A All ri~ht, would you 

Q Where it says credit, do youhave R-71 before you? 

A YPs, sir, that is a thousand and six dollar 

credit to thAt notE' 0aid on December the 18th, 

1972, reducin~ thf' balance. 

Q Okay. And, of course, all of the crPdit column 

reductn~ thP balance of thf' loan? 

A Yt-s, sir, 

Q Can you tell whethf'r or not, for examolE', on 

the third one down nne thousand five hundred and 

ninety-four dollars, would. that b~ more than 

one deoostt or would that 1ust be a check for 
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that amount of mnn~y or --

tn e1•r1.fy that? 

A All ri~ht, I trt~d to look uo all the r~cord~ 

for th•~• four cr•dtts to flhd out wh•r• they 

had eomt> from. 

Th• thousand and si~ dollar nayment, and I 

hav~ som• su~uortin~ documents t~at I can t>~plain 

b•tter wtth, was madt> from a thousand and six 

dollar cht>ck from th~ -- it ¥a s • eh~ck from th~ 

trea~ury of Duval County to Bt>navidt>s Imolement 

for a thousand and sf~ dollars and tt was used 

in it's entirety to pay this cht>ck this credft 

her• on this not•. 

Q I show you what ha~ bet>n mark•d as E-94 which 

ts a check on San Diego treasury of Duval County 

for a thousand and six dollars on -- tt ts idt>n-

ttfted claim number, et cetera, but it is dated 

December the 12th. Do you know wh~ther or not 

this county check E-94 for a thousand and stx 

dollars dated December 1'-th is the same one you 

ar• referrtn~ tn that made that oayment on the 

note December the 18th? 

A I couldn't swear to that rf~ht now. 
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Q Anc:l how 

A I would ~ssume it •~. but I c~n't --

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Mr. Bates. 

Of cour~P thP witness haf! hPen VPry candic:l, 

he cannot sweflr to H. 

MR. ODAM: Ri!!:ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: Anc:1 Anythin~ elsP would 

be soeculation, JudJ!:e. 

THE MASTER: And t~at is clear in thp 

rPcord. 

MR. ODAM: That's rt~ht, and I don't 

want any speculation, I ~hould J!:O back --

Q You made the stRtPment Parlier which orompted 

my t'IUP!!tion~ hnw do you know that Duval County 

r.heck for a thousand and six dol~s deoosited on 

that date, how do you know it ~ a Duval County 

A Okay, we maintain a ted~er which is this here, 

tri my hand h1 a couy of Pvery check that comE's 

into the bank for over one thousand dollars and 

it is madE' datly. 

Now, this is maintained to keep an eye on 

potential kitinl!: operations. And I had si.nce 

this payment was over one thouAar,d and 'lix dot las. 

I checked that led~er on thAt date and therP was 
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a thou~end end sf7 dollar eh~ek eem~ throu~h. 

B~navtd~s ImDl~m~nt Com~eny. 

Now, I wout~ not n~~d th~ reason I didn't 

ch~ck futh~r tnt" this, fs beeeus~ I had to be 

here this mornin~. 

Q Sure, I understand. You wer~n't asked to do it. 

A It would be -- ft would ~robably take me three 

or four day~ to ~o ~k to tho tellers ta~es, th~ 

~roof eom~uter ta~es, the mtcrofflm --

Q Ri~ht. 

A And I wor~rom ten -- from et~ht until five on 

it. 

Q I appreciate it and I am sure Mr. Mitchell do~s 

11nd the Court, At the ttme you have ~ut in on 

~ettin~ these records to~ether on a short ~eriod 

of tlme. 

I will show you again E-94 and show you 

the back of E-94 andshow you a circle below the 

name of R. M. Coultn~. Can you identify whet 

that circle h? 

A Welt, I can't read tt, I can't read all of it, 

but it a~peers to be a paid stem~. one of our 

from onP of our tellers, dated Decem-

ber the I believe the 18th, 1972. It could 

be " received stam~ or a oatd Atam,, but it is 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

7,7 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
ri'\DDIIC: I""'""CIICTI T~V.fl.~ 7A41lf 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

11 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

not le~ible there. 

Q But it is dated December the 18th, 1972? 

A Ri~ht. 

~ Indlcatln~ this check for a thousand and six 

dollar~ from thP county came in to the bank on 

Deamber the 18th, 1972? 

A Ye!l, sir. 

Q All ri~ht. Can I see the back of ft a~aln? 

{H~nded to the witness.) 

Q All rf~ht, now you --

A It says on here for note oayment. 

Q OkAy, ri~ht, and then -- okay. Now, you were 

I had startPd wfth fifteen ninety-four and you 

have bef'n kfnd f!'nnu~h to start back UlJ wi.th a 

thousand and six. Let's ~o to the next one, 

nfne hundred doll~rs. 

A All rt~ht, the nine hundre~. I have also here a 

"hotoeo"y of the charge made to the R. M, Coulln~ 

11eeount. It s~tys R. M. Couli.n~ on the ehar~e 

but lt was mad• to the Benavides Im"lement aeeount 

It says l)artial "ayment on note 

number 79947 IIJS oer your instruetionl!l. 

Q So that would b• a eheck out of -~ 

A Out _of his --
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Q Out of hiA cherkfn~ account? 

A Rf~ht. 

Q All rt~ht. 

A Now, on th.- fifteen hundrP.d l'lnd 1.1tnety-four 

dollar account, oayment on that note account, 

I a~atn, on that date, checkt>d the over one 

thousand dollar led~er and I fou~d another check 

from the county of Duval 0 ay ... e, Benavides ImolE>-

mE>nt Comoany, for a thousand 8nd stx dollars. 

Q Is that a date on that? 

A That ts on thE> over one thousand dollar list. 

Thlt~~ 'f.s 6-11-7'3, the same datP as thP oayment 

reflPcted on R-71. 

Nnw, thP other five hundred and et~hty-ei~ht 

dollar balance, I could not account for tn the 

timE> I had b.-forE> they closed thf' vaults. 

The ftnal oayment of seven hundrE>d and 

ninPty-seven dollars, of coursE>, iR not ovE>r a 

thousand and I had no way tn chE>ck that e7Cf'ot 

to ~o back to thP tE>llers tao.-s, the comouter 

and oroof taoes, and I just ~tmoly didn't have 

ti.me to do that. 

Q I will show you what has bE>en markE>d as E-109 

Exami.nE>r's Eyhlbtt, whiclt i.s a Duval County cht"rk 

In the amount of one thnusanrl stx dollars dated 
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Jun~ the 5th and on the back of that check, can 

you td~ntify w~At the ctrcle tt i_s 11 little 

btt cl~arer cooy on tht~ onP. 

A Tld~ me says June the 'ilth, 1971, which ts also 

the same date th8t ~yment was made to the note 

account. It ~ays oay to the order of the bank, 

it {s a receiot that we received tt, it went 

throu~h our bank. 

Q All ri~ht. 

A And it says for deposit. 

Q All rhht. 

MR, MITCHELL: I~ that Exhibit 106, 

olease, John? 

MR. ODAM: Yes -- well, wait. 

MS. LEV AT INO: No, it i.s 1.09. 

MR, ODAM: It is Exh'f.btt 109. 

MR, MITCHELL: Thank you. 

Q Now, Mr. Mitchell asked you a number of q~ttons 

about ne~otiations nf the note, et cetera. Do 

you know of your own Dersonal knowled~e the 1)er-

lions involved in the ne~otillt~nns of the note? 

Did you see Mr. Coulin~. for exllmDle, in 

the bank or anyone else, or ~ere you even at 

the bank aR an employee or an officer at that 

t f. me? 
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A No, air, I don't believe I was therP. I mi~ht 

have been, I don't remPmber. I have been therP 

Mr. Charles -- Bob 

Rt~hmond --

0 A 1l rf.p;ht. 

A -- handled the note at that time and he is now 

Q Okay. 

MR. ODAM: Mr. Mitchell mt~ht have 

some further nuesttons of you. I really 

aopreciete you comin~ back over. 

From your testimony, it is obvious, 

Your Honor, and Mr. Mitchell, th~t we have 

requested that the bank make better cooies 

of these photostatic copies of Plains 

Machinery, plus the forty-five checks I was 

referrin~ to, what our renuest was, all 

checks drawn on the Benavides Imolement and 

Hardware account, I believe, and if not, 

at least all of the checks on B. D. Holt 

and Phtns. 

The reason I make this comment ts I 

would like, tf we could, to ~tloulate so 

Mr. Bates -- we missed his s~hedulin~. if 

we could stipulate that if he were here on 
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from the b8nk made uo t~• ohotostat{c cooies 

~nd the ohotostatlc conies nf t~ose were 

ma~e from t~elr bank record~ An that ~e 

don't have to ask Mr. Anderson or Mrs. 

Gonzale'l! or Mr. B&tf'S tn come over <1ust for 

So, hooefully, we chn 1ust ~et those 

in here somPhow tomorrow. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am wondt>ri.n~ i.f &lso, 

Your Honor, lf we c&n h&ve thE' witnesses 

testimony, &nd request t~&t bt> out to the 

witne!'ls, in , ight of the re«~UPst out to 

the wi tnet'llll by counsel, t f I ml~ht h&ve thO!'If' 

dt>oosit slios from Duval County that went 

to nay off t~ose notes. 

I have no ob1ecttons, of course, I 

wouldn't object to those better aoies and 

I &m thtnktn~ a~ain, I knnw Counsel is 

&skin~ what he thinks is relPvant and I 

would l~kP to &sk the witness to ornduce 

what I think fs relevant, which will be the 

MR. ODAM: I don't have any objection 

to that and I don't kr.ow -- I don't know how 
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~nuld Atinul~t~ that I haVP no nb1•ction to 

th~ authenticity of tho~P. 

If we can ~et thosP on the bus, you 

know, nurguant to !'lome of the record conver-

!'latton!'! --

MR. MITCHELL: I _1u~t l.l8ke ,. similar 

statement then to Mr. Od~m. 

THe MASTER: Mr. Bates, are you ore-

uared to s~end tomorrow findin~ these records 

that these ~ent1emen have reauested or have 

!'!Omeone in your bank? 

MR. ODAM: Mr. Anderson, oerhaos he 

made those. My underAtandin~ actually was 

that those are bei.n~ mafle durin~ today ~tnd 

that Aomeone ~as ~oin~ to brin~ those over 

from the bank, so hnoefully -- that my 

reauest of you is bein~ carried out by 

somebody el!lle. Now, Mr. Mitchell's reauest 

of you --

MR. MITCHELL: Let me -- may I ask 

a auestton of the witness, Y~ur H~nor, 

before --

THE MASTER: Yes, str. 
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BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Mr. Bat~s. the eum and subetanc~ of your testf-

mony i8 that Mr. Qulin' ooen~d an account in 

that he vas the sole own~r of that buAiness 

~ntfty and he woul~ ~ave th~ ~ole oow~r and con-

trol over that account, am I corr~ct? 

MR. ODAM: I correct the statement on 

that. Th~ card soeaks for itself. 

THE MASTER: That's corr~ct, the card 

do~s not i.ndirate sole ownershio, there ts 

no check in ~i.ther bo~. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor --
THE MASTER: The form of thP ftUeRtion 

ts 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht, I withdraw 

the trUet~~tfon. 

Q You would not, of course, under that st~nature 

card, would not h• lPft any fne"ucttons, nor 

would you personally have honored any oth•r order 
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on the account from the dey it is o~en~d to thi~ 

2 date, am I cnrrPct? 

3 MR. ODAM: I ob1ect to that, the wtt-

4 ness has testff{ed he wa ~ not here ~t the 

5 tfmP I am not sure on this, that the 

6 witness does not have ~ersonal knowled~e as 

7 to fill~n~ out of this ~arttcular card 

8 because he was not at the bank, I am not 

9 sure that he would be Qualtfted to s~eak 

10 to that particular question. He was not a 

11 bank officer 8• that tfme, 

12 MR. MITCHELL: Jud~e, I am not goin~ 

13 to quibble with Counsel, I am ~otn~ to refer 

14 to the U.C.C. and the N.I.L. and the bank 

15 collect tons. 

!6 Q All rt~ht, at any rate, i.n addtt~on, Mr. Bates, 

17 your i.n"utry into that account indicate!'! that 

18 the account was ooened with borrowed money? 

19 A Yes, sir. 

20 Q From that -- from the bank, collater11l1.zed by 

21 a note and financial statement which ts R-7~? 

~ A Yes, sir, 

23 Q And that that money went into that account? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

~ Q And ~art of the oaymen~ made on that note were 
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mad~ by Mr. Coulin~ with checks drawn ~yable 

to hi.m from thf' Duval County tr~asury, is that 

cnrrf'ct? 

A That is thf' way I read the records, yes, str. 

MR. MITCH!!LL: I belfPVE' I have nn 

further ~uestions, Jud~f' Meyers, of this 

witness. Thank you. 

MR. ODAM: I have no further CUI!ltf.ons, 

thank you, vP.ry much. 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht, now, excuse mP 

just a minute, ft~. Bates, you have what 

reauests nf him, Mr. Mitchf'll, I understand 

the chP.cks. 

MR. MITCHELL: I do have one more. 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht, thE'y are 

already betn~ nre~ared by Mr. Anderson. 

Now, your recuest of him was what? 

MR. MITCHELL: In view of, Your Honor, 

the ouestions ~ut to the witness by Counsel 

for the Examiner on the de~ostts, into 

that account and the identity of thf'm, tt 

raised thE' ouestion tn my mind and I think 

the rP.cord should not reflect the source of 

those denosfts which are chf.'cks ·~~arently 

from Duval County which becomes very imnortant 
I 
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· in my thinktn~ and I would like to have him 

re~roduce those deoostt slios showin~ the 

de~ostts tn that account, 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht, now, what 

deoostt slins? 

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Coul.tn~ del)osf.ted 

mont>y into thltt account in thf' bank, 

THE MASTER From what ~eriod? 

MR. MITCHELL: That ts reflected, 

Your Honor -- may I have that Exhi.bi.t? 

MR. ODAM: !his ts our work co~y. tt 

ts there in the box, I believf'. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. ODAM: All riRht, the dates start 

November of 1972, say November 1 of 1972 

throu~h December ~1. 1974. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, the ~uestion was 

THE WITNESS: And the checks also? 

THE MASTER: I don't know. 

THE WITNESS: In other words, you want 

-~hotocootel'l of all activity of that accCJJlnt 

i.nto and out of. 

well. 

MR. MITCHELL: That summariP.ed it oretty 
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MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, I don't -- my 

only objection to Mr. B~tes havin~ to ~o 

back and tak~ more time to make uo the 

de~osit sltos, tt a~uears I think to be 

reoetitious and time-consuming if, in fact, 

these check8 are befn~ made on the account, 

whtch ts the best evidence of It ~ofn~ into 

the account. 

THE WITNESS: Well, wh8t I am 

MR. ODAM: And if we hl'!lve the amounts 

of de~osits, I am not sure what we are 

what more could be shown from maktn~ u~ 

some deoosit slios, if ther~ is somethin~. 

yru know, I would like to know. 

MR. MITCHELL: What I have in mind, 

Your Honor, would be Counsel is correct u~ 

to a ooint, but if they are deoosits comin~ 

into that account and a debit against that 

deoosit befn~ a Duval County check against 

a ~ersonal note, the thtr~five hundrerl 

dollars, t~ is another story and that ts 

what I am trying to show. 

THE MASTER: If you will si.m01y state 

to the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. 
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THE MASTER: -- wh8t your r@ouest is, 

so that the record will be clPar. 

MR. MITCHELL: All r{~ht • 

THE MASTER : And the w f.tnes s wi 11 be 

clear, it w{ll be helpml. 

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Bates, I think you 

summ~rized it correctly. I am interested 

in the reproduction of the deposit slips 

showf.n~ thP. source of the dE'nosits into those 

accounts for those dates. 

May I ask you, and I think you answered 

this, but I certainly want the record abun-

dantly clear: The exhibit which is intro-

duced as the bank statement which you pro-

dueed ·f,r us at a prior timeo covers the 

full snectrum of that 8cc~unt that is from 

November of 70 to the last month of 74, or 

are there others? I think you and I talkeod 

about th~tt? 

A I believe there are some 75's, I will check on 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) All ri~ht. 

A And we will run those out, too, I ~uess. 

Q And so that the record is correct~ that account 

is not a dormant or dead account, there are 
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t~d~er sheets befng sent out evern to the date 

that you ~re ~ittfn~ here on the witness stand, 

i~n't that cnrrect? 

A I bPlit've ~~:o. 

Q And this, of courst', is Decembt'r of 1975. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Mr. Batt's. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, only -- tht' only 

comment I would make is to tht' relevancy and 

I thou~ht that ht' has stated to be the 

relevancy of these sli~s. I would object, 

thouRh, to the relevancy of the de~osit 

sli~s and I would ~osP the ob1ection, ~n 

thou~h I know it is out of turn because thPy 

are not betn~ offered at this time, just 

g~nerally saying what they are. 

I think it would be ·~~rooriate to 

object on the Rrounds of relevan~y so this 

witness would not have to RO back u~ and 

I don't see how they 

are relevant. The witness has stated that 

thus far 

THE WITNESS: Whf.le my P:irls are tski ng 

off the checks, they can take off the 

de~osits the same time and snve me from 

havin~ to do it next week. 
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Now, this alone, etth~r way or both, 

3 three days to do. 

4 You are talking .,out from Nov£>mber, 72, 

5 to Decembl'r of 74, you are talking about 

6 si~ty or seventy rolls of microfilm that 

7 are gn{ng to have to be scann~d. So, if, 

8 Yo~Honor, let me do it once, olease or --

9 MR. ODAM: Like I say, my only und~r-

10 standing is that that was being done, maybe 

II you were not aware of this, it was being 

12 done today, they are suooosed to come over 

13 tonight so, therefore, it is being scanned 

14. ri~ht nnw and it would be rl'~etitious for 

IS you to have to do it. 

16 Again, my only objection is on the 

17 grounds of relevancy and I hate to see all 

18 of that 

19 THE MASTER I cannot rule on the 

20 relevancy until I see the E~hibits. 

21 MR. ODAM: I understand. 

22 THE MASTER: The re~uest has been 

23 made. If there is e~~ense involved, it is 

24 the obligation of the ~rson making the 

2S reauest to oay that e~nense. Do you agrt"t" 
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with th8t, Mr. Mttch~ll? 

MR. MITCHELL: I sure do, Jud~~ Meyers, 

and may I uoint out for th~ record, Your 

Honor, I woulrl havP a~reed with Counsel on 

the rel~vancy but for thoRe OUPStions just 

~ut to the witness within the last thirty 

minutes which I thou~ht wer~ very ~ood 

ouestion!'l, which I was very i.nta:~sted in 

in terms of the ~ri..or sworn testimony of 

hi..s own witnE'ss, Mr. CoulinJ!;, that all of 

th~ monte!'! thac came in from Duval County 

went to JudJ!;e Carrillo. 

MR. ODAM: I ob.1 ect to that statement. 

That doPtt not com~ort wtth the testimony. 

THE M"STER: It is not evf.dence in thP 

matter. 

MR. MITCHELL: I thouJ!;ht, Your Honor. 

that I would answr his stat~ment, his bald 

statement unchallenged. 

and I thou~ht the record ou~ht to SDea~my 

notion was that the note was brouJ!;ht in here 

!'lhowin~ that it o~ened that account which he 

had absolute and sole control over and then 

thes~ ~roceeds from these checks ~aid off 

that note, th~n i.t becomes a difft'rt'nt story 
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wher~ Mr. Coultng is eoncern~d. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Bates, f.n a moment 

you will st~o down and ynu may wish to call 

your bank to tell them to ~et these deoosit 

sli0 s, too, in addition to this other scart 

they are makln~. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Any further auestions of 

Mr. Bates? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, thank you, Jud~e 

Meyers. 

MR. ODAM: No, str. 

THE MASTER: Y~u~e excused, Mr. Bates. 

We will be in recess until 10:20. 

(Whereuoon the heartn~ was in recess 

frnm 10:00 a.m. until 10:10 a.m. of the same 

day.) 
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THE MASTER: Mr. Odam, I understood 

dur5.ng the break, in normal conversation 

betl-teen you and Mr. Mitchell and myself, 

there was some agreement with respect to 

some checks Mr. Blanton may or may not have. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, Your Honor. 

As I stated during the break, it would 

be our position that we will contact 

Mr. Blanton and ask him to produce the 

originals or copies of any checks in the 

possession of ~he Attorney General's office 

in Austin, which I doubt are there, but 

probably in the office in San Diego, on any 

checks drawn on Duval County and made out 

to the Benavides Implement and Hardware, 

other than those in evidence. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I also ask that 

include also checks drawn on the Benavides 

on Duval County Water Conservation District 

and the Duval County Independent School 

District payable to the Benavides Implement 

and Hardware? 

MR. ODAM: The county to the water and 

school district? 

THE MASTER: No, any checks drawn 
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against the account of the county --

Benavides Independent School District and 

what else? 

MR. MITCHELL: Duval County Water and 

Conservation District payable to the 

Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

THE MASTER: Right, that is, drawn 

against the account of those entities, 

drawn on those banks, more than one or only 

one, whichever. 

MR. IDAM: Well, the stipulation certainl~ 

goes to the Duval County checks and to 

Benavides Implement and Hardware. 

As to the others, I am sure there are 

those, and I don't know if he has them, 

but if we produce them, I would object on 

the grounds of relevancy. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor, I do 

not, of course, by this request, intend to 

represent they are relevant. I certainly 

don't intend that Mr. Odam waive any 

objection he has. I might agree they are 

irrelevant and immaterial and so forth, 

but I do owe a duty to make an examination, 

and if I deem they are relevant, I certainly 
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want the rules of evidence applied and I 

don't, however, want Mr. Odam to erode his 

position that they are not relevant and 

material. We would go to the rules of 

evidence, if we deem they are such. 

THE MASTER: Well, Mr. Odam, have you 

where do you stand with respect to checks 

on the Benavides Independent School 

District and the Duval County Water 

Conservation District, or whatever it is? 

MR. ODAM: Where I stand as far as 

stipulating? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: We would also request, 

if they have possession, we be allowed to 

see them. 

MR. ODAM: I guess my response to that 

is, assuming they are voluminous, I don't 

understand why you would want to see them. 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't want to see any 

of them drawn into anyone else except this 

man's business. He has alleged there was a 

partnership between this man and my client 

between 1971 -- and who he handled -- well, 

May, 1971., and that touches vitally on his 
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credibility. 

MR. ODAM: So you want to see the checks 

from the water district and school district 

to Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

MR. ODAM: I don't see what the 

relevancy would be of producing those checks. 

Why the water district and why the school 

district? 

We are dealing with Benavides Implement 

and Hardware a. •• d it seems to me other checks 

issued --

THE MASTER: You may be able to talk 

him out of his request at the next break. 

The request is with respect to a question 

and if he thinks it is important enough that 

he issue a subpoena to whoever may be in 

possession of those, then he probably will 

do so. 

MR. ODAM: I will stipulate to the 

production of the checks drawn on the county 

to Benavides Implement and Hardware. As to 

these others, I would not be in a position 

to stipulate at this time, because I don't 

kno'tf if they have them. 
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MR. M:TCH.ELL: I appreciate that and we 

will report back to the Court on that. 

THE MASTER: Fine. 

You may proceed, Mr. Mitchell. 

RUDOLFO COULING, 

recalled as a 1qitness, having been previously sworn, 

testified as follows, to-wit: 

E X A M I N A T I 0 N -----------

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q 

A 

Q 

Mr. Couling, I want to go back and ask you some 

other areas in light of the -- some additional 

testimony that has been produced since I believe 

you testified, and this is the 3rd of December, 

and you were on the stand, I believe, for a short 

time yesterday, I believe? 

Yes, sir. 

And you commenced testifying on the 1st? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I hand you what has been introduced as R-70 by 

another witness and ask you if you can recognize 

that signature as being your signature on the 

First State Bank and Trust of Rio Grande City 

account for the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

Company? 

Yes, sir. 

I also hand you R-73 and ask you if you recognize 

your signature on the reverse side of that 

document dated Nove~ber lst, 1972, as being the 

confidential statement in connection with a loan 

in the amount of three thousand five hundred 

dollars, which constituted an opening balance of 

the account in that bank? 

Yes, sir. 

And I hand you R-71 and ask you if that exhibit 

reflects the loan ledger as accurately as you can 

recall the transaction with the Rio Grande City 

bank in opening that account? 

Yes, it shows I borrowed thirty-five hundred 

dollars. 

And it shows the note was paid off? 

Yes, sir. 

And do you have the original note? 
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A No, sir, 1 don't know where it is. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

All right. The financial statement that was 

accompanying that loan transaction was filled in 

by you? 

Yes, sir. 

And it was, of course, attempted to be an accurate 

reflection of your financial condition on 

November 1st, 1972? 

Yes, sir. 

And you will note it reflects two hundred 

thousand dollars worth of land in Duval County? 

Yes, sir. 

1 believe 1 asked you whether or not you owned 

any land and you stated you did not, but your 

balance sheet, in 1972, reflects you did. Was 

that land sold? 

No, that is my wife's land, we still have it. 

That was the land you have the one hundred and 

twenty head of cattle on? 

Yes, sir. 

I notice you have sixty thousand dollars worth 

of cattle. 

How much, sir? 

Sixty thousand, and I believe yott owed on them, 

at that time, six thousand six hundred dollars. 
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A It was thirty thousand on the cattle. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

And you ow·ed six thousand six hundred dollars on 

them? 

Yes. 

Is that accurate? 

Yes, more or less. 

And the two hundred thousand dollars l,rorth cf 

land, you don't make any notation there that this 

is land o\med by your \v:tfe? 

No, sir. 

The Olivera family? 

No, si.r. 

And if one reads that as it appears, it appears 

that the land belonged to you; your wife is not 

a signature on that document? 

No, sir. 

And you are telling this Court now that the land 

there Lnrluded in that balance sheet to the bank, 

in support of that three thousand five hundred 

dollar loa~was your wife's land and not yours? 

Yes, sir. 

And that is the land on which the one hundred and 

twenty head of cattle are grazing? 

Yes. 

And is that the land that was bulldozed and root 
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plowed and planted in buffel grass and improved? 

Yes, gir. 

And how many acres are there? 

Almost eleven hundred acres. 

And that is the same tract the Olivera family owns 

today, that is all of it? 

Yes, every heir has the same amount of acres. 

That is willed to your wife or heired by your 

wife? 

Yes, sir. 

And you were not i1 .. ~ending to mislead the bank 

people by including that as your land? 

No, sir. 

You were telling the truth, as regards the value 

of the cattle at that time? 

Yes. 

\fuo did you owe the six thousand six hundred 

dollars to for those cattle? 

I don't know. It was F.H.A., I believe. 

You did not include any partnership interest in 

the Benavides Implement and Hardware, allegedly 

owned by 0. P. or Ramiro Carrillo in 1972 in 

that statement? 

No, sir. 

And that statement is made under oath, to which 
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you affixed your signature representing to the 

bank, and see if I am paraphrasing it correctly, 

a true statement of your financial statement to 

~-1hich the bank relied upon for this loan? 

Yes, to the best of my ability. 

lfhen you put down the merchandise of the Benavides 

Implement and Hardware, that was what amount? 

Eighteen thousand dollars. 

And you didn't say 0. P. or Ramiro Carrillo 

owned part of that? 

No, sir. 

What were your fixtures appraised at? 

Five thousand. 

You didn't say that was owned by 0. P. or Ramiro 

Carrillo in part? 

No, sir. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, the document 

speaks for itself. It is repetitious and 

the document certainly can speak for itself. 

THE MASTER: I think it is repetitious, 

1 agree. 

MR. MITCHELL: I have never had the 

document other than about an hour ago and 

it is a sworn document and the witness 

testified on numerous occasions as to a 
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partnership. 

THE MASTER: That is correct. You can 

make the point by saying there is no 

indication on that document that the 

Benavides Implement and Hardware was owned 

by any partners. That is the objection and 

I sustain it. You have already done that 

in the record. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will move on with that 

statement in the record. 

THE MASTL~,.: All right, sir. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) I believe also your wife or 

you owned land, ranchland, in Mexico? 

No, sir. 

Don't you and your brother-in-law have a business 

interest in Mexico? 

It was never in the Olivera family name. It was 

an uncle in Mexico City. 

You have a business down there? 

No, sir. 

In addition to the obligation of this six 

thousand six hundred dollars you had in November, 

1972, did you have any other obligations not 

reflected on this balance sheet? 

I don't know, sir; I don't remember. 
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You did a lot of work; I believe you bought a 

pickup from Judge Carrillo? 

Yes, sir, but I don't recall the year. 

You bought -- strike that. 

Mr. Couling, didn't you also expend some 

money for -- in behalf of Mrs. Minerva Cassius 

for remodeling of her home in N0vember, 1973? 

No, sir. 

You didn't obligate yourself in the amount of 

eight th~usand dollars for the remodeling of her 

home? 

No, sir, she borrowed it from the S.B.A. or 

someone on that. 

So the record reflects it, Miss Minerva Cassius 

was your mistress during that period of time, is 

that correct? 

MR. ODAM: 1 object to that. That is 

the first time 1 had heard this lady's name. 

She has not been previously identified. 

THE MASTER: The objection is sustained. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Have you previously testified 

under oath that Minerva Cassius was your 

mistress? 

Not in this court, sir. 

Not in this court? 
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A No, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

But at a previous time under oath, she was 

identified as a mistress to you and you paid 

various sums of money to her on various occasions? 

Well 

Sir? 

Yes, sir. 

Let me ask you -- I want to go into the welfare 

program in Duval County. 

Your personal knowledge is indicated there 

and I am going to oe interested in the period 

from January 1st, 1971 to January or February and 

March, 1975. 

Yes, sir. 

Let's start in January, 1971, and see if we can't 

go back. 

You participated, did you not, on the 

administration of the welfare program in assistance 

to Judge Carrillo? 

Yes, sir. 

And so that the record is clear now, there has 

been evidence, out of fairness to you in the 

record, that the program was initiated by the 

welfare officer and the various county 

commissioners or other persons designated to whom 
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people could go and ap~ly for welfare assistance. 

Yes, sir. 

And looking at R-62, which is Claim No. B-232, 

it appears to be R-62-A and B, and those are 

signed by Cleofus Gonzalez to the Cash Store for 

groceries? 

Yes, sir. 

Keeping those in front of you, it would appear 

at least, as far as 1975, Cleofus Gonzalez had 

the authority to sign for the Welfare Department 

order forms for grc. ~eries, at least for those 

persons named there, as recently as January, 

1965? 

'65 or '75? 

'75. 

I don't kno,;.1 about that. 

These -v1ere signed in December, 1974, those orders 

originated at that time, and they were paid in 

Janua.ry, 197 5. 

I am simply trying to get in the record, 

at least in December, Cleofus Gonzalez was 

authorized to receive and execute those orders 

and those were approved by the welfare officials 

and the court approved those for payment, is that 

correct? 
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A I don't know how it operates. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

It appears from those that is how it is done, at 

least today. 

Yes, sir. 

And other people, such as the commissioners, Juan 

Leal and Ramiro Carrillo, who were commissioners, 

r,,erc also authorized by the Co!UI"'issioners Court 

to receive applications from welfare recipients? 

Yes, sir. 

!\. 1:' t 11ey would make an investigation and report 

that to the proper .elfare official, which entered 

that ~rder, and in turn the recipient would be 

given groceries from a grocery store or for drugs, 

or whatever, and those people would furnish the 

g>ods in payment of those checks? 

Yes. 

And those would be submitted to the county and 

the commissioners would pay or pass on them? 

I never attended any of the meetings, so I don't 

know. 

Is that the procedure that existed on the period 

of time outlined? The Commissioners Court would 

take them and consider them and say pay them or 

not? 

I know they would be paid, but I don't know how. 
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Specifically, now, I am going to ask you about 

how the system worked if you were involved in it. 

As a matter of fact, the record reflects 

Judge Carrillo had authority to receive applicatio~s 

from persons who were qualified to receive 

welfare assistance. 

MR. ODAM: We object to this line of 

questioning on repetition. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will withdraw it. 

MR. ODAM: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) "ere you at one time helping 

Judge Carrillo with the welfare recipients? 

He left the books in the office and when he was 

not around, he authorized me to sign them. 

What years were those? 

I believe it was when he was county attorney. 

Do you remember what year that was? 

I don't remember the exact date. 

Those were bound books, were they not, that had a 

white and pink and yellow slip copies in them? 

Yea .. 

And he would leave those at your office and -­

what was your capacity at that ttme? 

Tax collector and assessor. 

And folks would come to aee you when they needed 
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groceries or drugs or medication or medical 

service, is that the way it worked? 

Yes, sir. 

And you t-.rould fill in the white and the yellow 

and the 11ink copies? 

Yes. 

And actu~lly you kept a record ~n that book and 

that would be the pink copy, would it not? 

There was one copy left in the book, but I don't 

remember the color. 

And the white copy •. ent with the claim? 

I don't know where it went, but the people would 

pick it up. 

And they in turn would go to the Cash Store, or 

wherever it was made to, and get their groceries 

o.r whatever? 

Yes, sir.· 

And the Cash Store would give them the amount of 

groceries the welfare office authorized and make 

their own report of that transaction? 

Yes, they were supposed to. 

So when it went to the Commissioners Court, it 

was the white form which was endorsed and the 

ticket for the sale of the groceries and that would 

all go to the commissioners and you suppose that 
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would be paid or disallowed? 

I suppose so. 

I am not trying to overburden you, but there 

has beett a question raised in the merchandise 

that was purchased from the Cash Store from the 

period of time of 1971 to 1975. 

What I am mainly interested in is, first 

of all, this procedure you have outlined, that 

general procedure, has persisted with no radical 

changes in it? 

No, sir, not that ~ know of. 

Do you know when Judge Carrillo was authorized 

by the Commissioners Court to participate in that 

welfare program? 

No, sir. 

Can you tell us when you personally assisted 

Judge Carrillo in helping him carry out the 

orders of the Court to receive the applications? 

It was like I said a while ago, it was when he 

was county attorney. 

It would be -- would that be -- well, I will ask 

it this way. 

Do you recall whether it passed over beyond 

1971? 

I didn't have anything to do with it beyond 1970, 
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I don't believe, sir. 

Have you been a resident in the county for over 

fifty years? 

Yes, sir. 

And do you know the procedure, say beginning in 

1968, up to the date of these proceedings, has 

it been consistent? 

I imagine they have been, sir. 

There is nothing wrong, or is there anything 

wrong strike that. 

Now, we have ~~aced one procedure in the 

welfare setup. Let me ask you about another. 

Was it customary for the doctor or druggist 

or grocery people to call persons authorized to 

receive applications for welfare and to inform 

them that persons were in the drugstore or grocery 

store or the doctor's office, and would the 

procedure begin that way at some times? 

It might have, and I can 1 t say, because I don 1 t 

remember. 

If you can't give us personal knowledge, I will 

move on. 

Now, I would like to move to another area. 

I had asked you about your relationship with the 

deceased, George Parr, and as a matter of fact, 
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prior to the beginning of this year and the death 

of George Parr, I believe, was in April, 1975, 

but there was a close relationship between you and 

George Farr that goes back many years, is that 

correct? 

Well, I made it a point -- I probably saw him 

once a month or so, but not every day. 

Would you characterize George Parr as a political 

power in Duval County? 

He was in power and the Carrillos were also. 

I understand the c~_rillos and Parrs were one 

and the same party up to this year, were they 

not? 

I don't know up to what time. 

There was a split in the Carrillo and Parr factions? 

Yes. 

And do you know that came about because Judge 

Carrillo removed certain people from the school 

board who were Parr people? 

I don't know. 

But anyway, there was a split? 

Yes. 

And the school board changed completely, did it 

not, prior to the time you were dismissed as 

tax collector? 
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A Yes. 

Q And would you aay, aa in fairness to the record, 

that there had bean a ca.plete split between the 

C~rrillo and Parr faction• in Duval County tbis 

year? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And is it fair to characterize )ourself, 

Hr. Couling, also the SanchJ?. people and the 

Chapaa, Ruben and Rudolfo, Vicente Chapa, 

Francisco Ruiz, all as members of one faction 

identified aa the tarr faction? 

A There were a lot more. 

Q t understand, but that would include you and 

Cleofua Gonzalez and these people I named? 

A Yes. 

Q As a matter of fact, the location of the anti-

Carrillo faction is the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware Store? 

A Not the store. the back part of the store. 

Q And I note Mr. Cleofus Gonzalez. on Exhibit 63, 

speaks to the fact that be is authorized to 

receive applications for welfare. 

A I believe he is not right nov, however. 

Q Nov, Mr. Couling. as a matter of fact. the 

bulldozers that have been the recipient of 

( IIA Til AM & :\SSCI< 1." II:'\ 
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inquiry, as a matter in April and March of this 

year, were being used by George Parr? 

Not to my kn~1ledge. 

Don't you know, as a matter of fact, the Texas 

Rangers discovered them on the Atlee Parr Ranch? 

1 don't know, sir. 

You didn't make a bulldozer rental to George 

Parr? 

No, sir. 

How about to Archer Parr? 

Neither one, neithe~ he nor George. 

You never had a dealing where you were to be 

paid by the county through Archer Parr, through 

1972 until 1974? 

I never visited with Archer Parr about any 

bulldozers. 

How about the drilling rig. You did know Judge 

Carrillo owned it? 

I didn't know who owned it. 

Where was the rig located? 

It was in Duval County. 

You know, don't you, that drilling rig was used 

by Archer and George Parr for the purpose of 

drilling water wells on their ranches? 

I don't know; I saw it on the side of the highway 
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drilling, but I didn't know who it belonged to. 

And the rig was being used by the Parrs on their 

land, was it not? 

I don't know. 

And you know the county used that drilling rig 

which belonged to Ramiro or 0. P. Carrillo, do 

you not? 

I don't know who it belonged to. 

MR. ODAM: I will object to that on 

the grounds of relevancy, which according 

to the witnesb s testimony, the rig belonged 

to the Carrillo brothers. Assuming it was 

used by the Parra and the county, it seems 

to be far afield to me, 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, the objection 

is probably technically correct. We offer 

that subject to connection, 

THE MASTER: I don't see the relevancy, 

but you represent it will be connected? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, and we will 

join the Court to strike, if we don't 

connect it. 

THE MASTER: Very well. 
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THE MASTER: All rtght. 

2 MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I don't know whet-

3 hPr I ROt a clearcut answer on the last Ques-

4 tlon and If the Court will bear with m~ 

5 Q CAn you testify, Mr. Coulfn~. of your own ~ersonal 

6 knowled~e, do youknow the riR we Are talkin~ about? 

7 A YPs, Rir. 

8 Q Did you know of your own ~ersonal knowled~e whet-

9 hPr that ri~ was ever used by Duval County to do 

10 County work? 

II A I !'Ita ted a while &J!;o ~hat it did drf.ll some wAter 

12 wells when the county divided some lands that 

13 were owned by thP same owner and the hi~hway went 

14 throu~h. 

15 Q All ri~"tht, thank you. 

16 MR. MITCHELL: Let me have E~htbit 109. 

17 
(Dfscussf.on off the record.) 

18 

19 Q Mr. Coulin~. there has been ~reviously identf.fled 

20 In the record R-71, that loan ledger sheet with 

21 the First Stat~ Bank and Trust Comoany of Rio 

22 Gr•nde City that was a loan for thirty•ff.ve hundred 

23 dollars about which I had asked you earlier. 

24 A Yes, str. 

~ Q Do you recall that? 
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Yf>B, !'lir. 

2 ! Q Now, cnunsel for thP Examiner, Mr. Odam, ha!ll 

3 

4 of a thnu!'lan~ and !'l~x dollar!'l on that loan. You 

5 BeE' that ·-

6 A YPs, sir. 

7 Q -· thltt thou!'l&nd and s!x dollArs? 

8 A YE>s, sir. 

9 Q Nnw, I will show you now E-109. This ts a check 

t 
I 
' 

I 
! 

10 ~I'Jyable for .11 thousand and s~x dollars to Benavides 

11 

12 I believe you havP already identified tt for us, 

13 

14 Comoany. Do you reco~nf.ze that chPck number 109? 

15 A Yes. !'li_r, I reco~nill!e this check. 

16 0 All rt.~ht, .11nd can you tell u!'l if th11t cht>ck 109 --

17 for onP thousend and six dollars betn~ check 

18 Exhibit No. 109, was the source of the thousand 

19 and six dollar!'l nafd to that thirty-five hundred 

20 

21 lf'dger, R-.71? 

~ A No, sir, I can't tt"ll you because it was madP 

23 

24 

25 

for dt'posit, !llfr. 

THE MASTER: I «Hdn' t undPr!> tand thf' 
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A It wa~ mad~ fnr dpoosit. 

THE MASTER: It was mftd~ for what? 

A For dPf)nsit. 

THE MASTER: For d~oosit? 

A YE>s, ~ir. 

Q Do you know ~hf'tht>r nr not t~erP was annthf'r 

~heck for a thousand and stx dollArs that was 

ls!!Uf'd by and I ftm not !ntf'r~sted in any nthf'rs, 

exceot thosE> {!!sued by th~ treasurer of Duval 

County to you, which you dPf)ostted -- which you 

use 8!! a sourcP of the credit for thf' oayment on 

that thirty-five hundred dollar loan. 

A I believe you showed mP. one, str. I btol i_eVP you 

showed me onP that it had on thP back written 

for oaymPnt on notP. 

Q That's ri~ht. We had a cbE>ck th~t we talk~d 

about day before yesterday that was endorsed on 

thP back sidP for loan oaym~nt. 

A Correct. 

Q Is that correct? 

A YPs, s-f_r. 

Q Fine. Now, I'll _ask you some nuest{ons about it: 

I had asked you about that check -- I bPlieve it 

is in line with th~ ouestions that vou -- or 

answers that ymhad given undPr oath tn this court 
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1 
! 

2 

3 to a ~cheme to rip off the county ~nd meeks were 

4 written and given to Jud~e c~rrtllo. 

5 
I 
I I, 

I Askerl you Rbout -- and tnc1dentally, that 

6 !I {s ~-94, An~ I a~ked you About that check. 

7 MR. MITCRELL: I am going to try to 

8 f5.nd i.t, JudgP. 

9 THE MASTER: It was introduced in the 

10 ~erfeR st~rtfng w'th E-57 going throu~h E-65, 

11 68, 69, 74 and o forth, that long series 

12 of checks. 

13 

(DiscuAsion off the record.) 
14 

IS MR. MITCHELL: John, do you mind if I 

16 U!>f> your cot)y? 

17 MR. ODAM: Of what, R-94? 

18 MR. MITCHELL: Yf"s, so I can ~et on 

19 wi.th the nr'lceedings. 

20 MR. ODAM: Hf>re i.s R-94. 

21 
(HAnded to Counsel.) 

22 

23 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Now, Mr. Couling, handing 

24 you back R•7l and now referring to E-94 wh{ch 

25 you previouAly -- as you recall, look on the 
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____________ " ~46r 
reverse side of that check, whtch fs E-94, it is 

a cheek from the treasurer of the county of Duv~al 

to the Benavides Imolement and Hardware dated 

December l?th, 1972, in the amount of a thousand 

and stx dollars, am I correct? 

A YP.s, sir. 

Q And lookin~ at R-71, it aooears that that oayment 

of a thousand and six dollars was made sometime 

in December 18th, 1972, on that thirty-five 

hnndred dollar loan, doesn't it? 

A YP.s, sir. 

Q Now, looki.n~ at E-94 on the reverse side, i.t i.s 

endorsed for note oayment, Benavides Imolement 

and Hardware Comoany, R. M. Couli.n~. is that cor-

rect? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Now, does that refresh your recollection that 

the thousand and six dollar check from the Duval 

County went to nay your oersonal note at the 

Rio Grande Bank? 

A That was a 0ayment on the note, that was borrowed 

to buy a Massey-Fer~uson for 0. P. Carrillo. 

Q I knew that is what your testimony 0reviously 

was and 1 wondered if you would r~member what you 

testified oreviously and I'll ask you about that. 
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I On th~ Mass~y-Fer~uson nurchas~ and a~re~ment,l 

Mr. Coulin~t, 'isn't i.t a fact that tht> thi.rty•five I 
hundred dollar check to wh'lch that note was 

l'lnpl i.ed as nayment, ts the thirty•ftveo hund-' 

thl'lt was -- the onening entry in that nersnnal 

account i.n the F'l.r~t State Bank and Trust Comoany 

of Rio Grande C'lty. 

A I would like tn see the bank statement. 

Q Well, you are looking at in in R-71. 

A Tht~ Is a note ledRer. 

Q All r'l~ht, we'll ~~v~ you thl'lt. 

MR. MITCHELL: Whert> f.s that? 

MS. LEVATINO: That i.l'l E-16?. 

MR. ODAM: This h our wotk cooy. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right, I have got lt. 

Q I believe that there has been testimony that look• 

in~ at E-162, that that three thousand four hun-

drPd and sevP.nty-three dollars Bnd seventJ-fi.ve 

cents was the nroceeds of this thirty-five hundred 

dollar notE': that is, you borrowed i.t that day 

Rnd ooPn~d the account wlth {t, less certain 

minor charp:es for f.nsurance? 

A Y~!!l, ~dr. 

Q Now, looking at 16?.. 

A Yeos, sir. 
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I --~- :w .- f: ~•o•oro tho t th• loon, the :: •• do of \ 

2 
UP loan for thirty-five hundred dollars were used 
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to open the BenAvides Imolement and H•r~ware 

account as ~hown by 162, is that correct? 

A Yes, ~ir, thAt is correct. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me 1ust a minute, 

may I h8ve one minute1 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

Q b it your testlmony, and I'll h~tve to ask you 

for the record, is it your testimony that the 

thtr~five hundred dollars bou~ht the Massey-

FPrp,uson tr8ctor? 

A It was a down payment, sir, two thousand nine 

hundred and somethin~ dollars. 

Q ThAt would be the withdrawal shown ll-16-72? 

A I believe this here, this here cheek here, Yes, 

~ ir. 

Q All right, now, to yruhave the suooortin, doeu-

ment on the Massey-Ferguson tractor? 

MR. ODAM: (Counsel nodded head yes.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Could I see it? 

MR. ODAM: This is a retail ourehase 
I 

order to 0. P. CeDillo for the Massey-Ferguson! 
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1 
I tractor and thi~ {~ a lettPr saying an ear-

I 
lt~r check -- l~tter to Judge Carrillo ~ayin~ 1 

that An earlier check of October 18th was 

no good becau~e there wR~n't such an account. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, let me -- the 

document hAnded to me •~nears to be first 

the Nueces Farm Center, Incor~orated, Rob~town 

T~xas, frnm 0. P. Carrll_lo, am I correct, Mr. 

Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHE~L: And you renresent theRe 

ar~ the nronerly oroduced ourchase orders 

from Massey-Ferguson that relate to the 

Mas~ey-Ferguson tractor that the w1tness is 

testffyfng about? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, and we ~ntended 

to htroduce them into evidence and I would 

so stat~ they were, and hone that with your 

use of them that, therefore, ft would not be 

neces~ary to call someone over from Robstown 

to so stllltf>. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I am nuHe wi tl:Lnp 

to acct>~t Counsel's representation concerning 

the document!'!, Your Honor, and I would tiki? 

to have tt marked. 
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(Mark~d for identification by the 

r~oorter a~ Exhibit R-74,) 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I re0re~ent 

to this Cou~t I have not seen this document 

previou~ly. May I have a minute to ~o over 

t~e document wtth my client? 

THE MASTER: All rl~ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't w11nt to the 

Court breaks at twelve, doesn't it? 

THE MASTER: It is not time for a 

break. 

MR. MITCHELL: I was thinkin~ maybe, 

Your Honor, I mi~ht if I could just take 

about a minute or two, Jud~e Meyers, I think 

that's all I would need. 

THE MASTER: We can break for twenty 

minutes now and just h8ve a lon~ session 

rather than a short session. 

MR. MITCHELL: Jud~e MeyPrs, I would 

just -- I would just as soon ~o ahead on the 

ordinary schedule. 

THE MASTER: That's fine. 

MR. MITCHELL: Because I think thP 

Court has a very good schedule worked out and 
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I would 1fke to take a break about twelve 

anyway. 

THE MASTER: All rf~ht. 

MR. ODAM: I was al~o ~ivtn~ Mr. 

Mitchell ~ cooy of thts letter of November 

the ~rrl, s certtfted cooy, addre5~ed to 

Jud~e Carrf.llo from the Robstown oeonle or 

from the Ma~~ey - Fer~u~on 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

MR. ODAM: ThiR mi~ht helo exolstn that 

cht"ck. 

(Handed t" Counsel.) 

(Dlscuss~on off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: I think I can nroceed 

now, Jud~e MPyers. 

THE MASTER: All ri.~ht. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Mr. Ccd.i.n~. Counsel for thf' 

Examiner has handPd me --

MR. i"'ITCHELL: Wp offer R-74 tf I haven' 

done so, Jud~e Meyers. 

I will break into that and withdraw 

that fra~mt"ntary nuestlon and start all over 

a~ain. 
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THE MASTER: It i.s admittec!. 

Q Counsel for the Examiner has handec! me R-74, 

which a~~ears to be a retail ~urchase order from 

the Nueces Farm Center, Inco~rated, ~s -- from 

Jud~e 0. P. Carrillo as the buyer and it an~ears 

that this is a diesel tractor -- excuse me, and 

I ~uooose the Massey•Fer~uson eovioment that you 

are talkin~ about. Take a minute there. 

A I ~on't know. 

Q See ff you can i~entify it and I will ~sk you 

some nuesttons about it a~ relates to your orior 

te~tlmony on the check drawn out of your account 

tn the Rio Grande bank in 1972. 

A I don't know if it is the same tractor or not. 

Q All we can do is assume when Counsel handed {t 

to us that i_ t relates -- t'hl t "- t obviously relates 

to a contract of ~urchase dated March 18th, 1970, 

does u not? 

A Yes, sir, but I don't know anythi.nJ!; about those 

oaoers. 

0 I undPrstand. But I say, the contract ~f.ven now 

as R-74 is a contract for the ourchase of a 

otece of enuinment, a diesel tractor by Jud~e 

Carrillo some two and a half years orior to the 

time you o~ened the account in the Rio Grande City 
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B.qnk. 

Q A~~umtn~ th~t thP R-74 is the contr~ct rpfprrPrl 

tn, thPn you couldn't, of cnurse, have madP "' 

down ~ayment on thP ourchase ortce of this tr8ctor 

of two thousand nine hundred and seventy-fivP 

dollars on November of 1972 if the tractor wmP 

~urchased under the a~reement thst ts set out 

fn R-74, some year and a half or two years ear-

lier. 

A I don't know about tnat, but the check was made 

to M8ssey•Fer~u~on for a down oayment on the 

tractor and I 8m not sayin~ it is that. 

Q So it is conceiv.qble what we are talktn~ about f~ 

still another tr.qctor? 

A I lma~ine so, str. I am not sure. 

MR. MITCHELL: A 11 rt~ht, Mr. OdRm, 

do you have a contract on another tractor? 

MR. ODAM: No, that -- that is correct, 

that Is the tractor. 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes. 

MR. ODAM: I think it is set out in 

there that there is a schedule of nayment 

and thi_s is one of the naymPnts that was to 

be made as indicated in that letter that 
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I told you ~ w~ile a~o. The check was 

written --

MR. MITCHELL: I an concernPd wf th the 

wftnes~' sworn testtmony, ff it nlease thP 

Court, that thts amount of money wa8 m8de 

8S a down nayment on the tractor. 

THE MASTER: That l<'a!! Li~ tr.stimony. 

MR. ODAM: That was his testimony. 

A That is my under8tandin~ it w~s a down oayment. 

Q I understand. Now, lookin~ at R-74 and regardle~s 

of what your under~tandin~ was then and this might 

oerhaos be sub1ect to the ob1ection of betn~ 

ar~umentative, tt could not have been the down 

nayment of the a~UPment dated some year and a hftlf 

or two years earlier? 

A I don't know, str. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have one mi_nute, 

Your Honor, fn vi.ew of the nuestlon raised 

as to 0 erhans an i.nstallment to examine the 

l!lstreement. It is a multf.n1e nlt~P I!IF!;reement. 

THE MASTER: Yes, <~i.r. 

MR. MITCHELL: Perhaos, Judste, the 

Court wants to examine it 8lso and be ore-

oared, because I can't tell whl!lt f.t ts. 

Q The Exhibit R-74 that thP Court fs examtnin~. that 
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ts the first time you saw it is just now? 

A Yes, ~~;i.r. 

MR. MITCHELL: And I mak~ the statement 

for th~ recor~ that this ts the first time 

I hav.- Reen i.t. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Mitc~l. 

(Hand~~ to Counsel.) 

THE MASTER: I do not find in my examin-

ation of it, which was br1~f. a schedule of 

~ayment in that ~et of docum~nts. 

MR. MITCRELL: All ri~ht, Jud~e. 

Q I ask you one truestf.on, Mr. Coulin$!, tsn't it a 

fact that Jud$!e Carrillo h~d a consideration 

amount of eoui.Dment, tractors, dozers, air com-

Dr~ssors and so forth whtch were avatlable to t~P 

Benavtdes ImDlement and Hardware to be rented? 

A I never did rent anythin~ from him. 

Q Not ·from him, for him, ~·ouldn't you rent it forhtm? 

A No, sir. 

Q And your testtmony -- it is your testimony that 

this tractor R-74, you nf'ver did rent the tractor 

for and on his account for a fee? 

A No, sir. 

THE MASTER: Excuse me, your auesti.on 
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to thfs witness is dfd he, ~ctfn~ f~r Jud~e 

Carr~llo, rent e~ufoment t~ other~ as a~ent 

MR. MITCHELL: Th11t's rt~ht, Judge 

THE MASTER: And your answer is? 

A No, sfr. 

Q In line with the Court's nuestion, let me ask 

you one more nue~t~on or one or two nuestions. 

It was 11 common or~tctice. was it not, in 

Duv11l County, and is, for either the Farm and 

R11nch or the Benavides Imolement and Hardware 

Comoany or the Olfverll Imolement and Hardware 

or other merchandistn~ stores would rent enuipment 

to the county or to other oersons belon~tn~ to 

oersons such as Judge Carrillo or Ramiro Carrillo 

or Archer P11rr or yourself? 

A All I know about is my store and I never did rent 

a~hfn~ to the county or to anybody else. 

A Don't you know as 11 matter of fact when Cleofus 

worke~ for the Zertuche Store and Farm and Ranch, 

that he rented considerable amounts of e~uioment? 

A I can't say he did or not. 

Q If you have no nersnnal knowlf'd~e, I will not 

ask you any further nuestions alon~ that line. 
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Wpll, as a mett~r of fact, thi~ Massey• 

FPr~uson tractor, Mr. Coultn~. you used the 

trac tor yoursplf on your ranch? 

A I didn't use that one. I used onP that was 

Ramiro's, sir, a ~maller one and if tt was O.P. 's, 

my understandin~ was that the tractor was Ramiro'~. 

Q WPll, I asked you -- did you nay rent on it? 

A No, sir. 

Q But you disti.nctly remember another Massey-Fer~u~on 

on your own account, but that the tractor belon~ed 

to Ramiro? 

A Not mine. 

Q For Ramiro, I'm not : su~~esttn~ any wron~doi.n~, 

you dtd it with permission. 

A YPs, sir, as a matter of fact, Ramiro sent one of 

his own driver~ un there to do tt. 

Q So, I am not talkt~about anything that you don't 

kno~ anythin~ about? 

A No, str. 

MR. MITCHELL: Can I have just one 

more minute, Judge, on this contract, pleasP. 

THE MASTER: Yea, sir. 

(Dl~cussion off the record.) 

Q Mr. Coulin~, let me ask you to do a little 
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mathcmat'c~ with m~ on R-74. 

nwfn2 nn thnt ~nufnmrnt WP~ rirht thousan~ Rrvrn 

A Thnt iR the f'gure that is there, Rir. 

0 All rlRht, lrt mr hnnd thiR tn thr Court so the 

Court rnn follow thrsr comoutations. 

(Randrd to thr Court.) 

A Yr<>., "f.r. 

And it noorars that thP oayment~ wrre aooroyi-

mntely two thousnnd drinars A month, Am I corrrct? 

MR, ODAM: 

MS. LEVATINO: Did you ~Pr the schrdulr 

MR., MITCHELL: I Am a~kinp thr uttnrsR. 

A I ~nvrn't Rrrn thr Rchedule nf oaymen~s. 

Q Your check fnr twrnty-sevrn hundred ninety-fivP 

A 

dnlll'lr"' t••.!t!'l P.:iv~n Novf'mher of 72, Romr twenty-four 

1rt'~ RPf', if my -- thirty-twn months later. 

If that is what thr dnte is on thP rhrck, Rir. 
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would ..,,.Vf' 1on~ been oai.d for, ... •ouldn't tt? 

A I don't know what the ~chedule was. 

Q All ri~ht, you wouldn't know that? 

A No, s fr. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will move to another 

innutry, Jurlge. 

MR. ODAM: Well, are you goin~ to offer 

into Pvi.dPncP, I don't know if you 1-erP or 

not, t"tP 1Ptter from Jud~P Carrillo to 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I don't intend to, 

Mr. Odam. I will ~ive it back to you --

well, let mP -- I'm sorry, I sAid thAt with-

out hav{n~ asked my cl!Pnt. I haven't 

asked my client to detPrmine what he wants 

to do. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: I can't offer it. 

(Handed to Counsel.) 

MR. MITCHELL: I can't agree to it. 

MR. ODAM: Thank you. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Mr. Coultn~, I move to another 
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~t~t~m~nt th~t thPy wprp oaym~nts tn Jud~~ Carrillo 

by you of mnntPR which wPrP tncorrPctly or frAu~u- 1 

lent1v P~tra~t~~ frnm the Duval Cnunty ~nd out into 

t~P 8pnavides ImolPment and BardwarP Comoany 

account over whic~ you had cnntrnl. Dtd you 

follow that, dfd you follow my statement? 

Those checks r:. t you tP,r;t1 fi ed to orPvt-

ously were c~ecks ~ritten by you on t~at account 

to Jud~e Carrillo, a method by which you oasRed 

tho11e i.moroo~rly pxtracted fund!'! fr,m the county 

to Jud~e Carrillo. 

A If tho~e art> the checks you oresented m• yester-

day. 

Q Well, of courRe, that wasn't true In all tnstancPs 

We know that now, Isn't that correct? 

A You ~aven't qhown me anythtn~ that wasn't true, 

!!!lr. 

Q WPll, look at Exhibit E·l5R. 

A That is mad~ out to o. P. Carrillo. 

Q And look at th~ endors~ment. 

A That Is 0. P. Carrillo, Cash StnrP, ~. c~~hPd 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COUAT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 71.01 



-tt---------------------------------- 249') I 

{t at the Cnsh Store. 

2 0 You know thAt ~~ not true. 

3 A Why not? 

4 Q I~n't that, ss a m~tter of f~ct, that is half 

5 of your ~rocery bill that you and he had gonr 

6 hunting to~ether and the bill ~as nafd fifty oer-

7 cent hy him and fifty oer ~ent by you and you 

8 reimbursed him for that? 

9 A I rlon't know, I don't remPnber. I c'lon' t know 

10 1f tht~ check ~a~ that. 

11 Q You wrote ft. didn't you? 

12 A I wrote it, but I signed it tn blank and h~ 

13 filled it ln. I don't know what it was for. 

14 Q Once thp endorsrmPnt, the Cash StorP --doesn't 

15 It serve your recollection that on ~everal occa-

16 s tons you all we£ out and had i o-1 nt ventures m1 ci-J 

17 as 1olnt huntlng oarttes and the like, and you 

18 would reimburse him for ex0 ensPs on those _1o"!nt 

19 social gatherings and business gatherings? 

~ A You statP it was for hunt{n~. grocery bill? 

21 Q I didn't ~tnte that, my nuestf.on ts to you, i.sn't 

22 It a matter of fact, Mr. Couling, that that 

23 that is the rea~on for that check vou a~e holding 

24 therP in your hand? 

~ A I don't know If ft was the rr3son or not. 
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Q There is not 8nything im~ro~er -- oh, you don't, 

all right. 

ThP f&ct i. t would have bPen given to the 

Cash Store by Judge Carrillo --

A No. 

Q -- would not serve your recollection that as a 

matter of fact thP check wa~ given to ~ay your 

~hare of a grocery bill? 

A I don't know if it was my share when I said I 

signed the check in blank, I don't know ~"hat he 

used 1 t for. 

Q Ynu don't remember any conversation with him in 

Novf'mber of 71 when you gave hfm the check? 

A I don't know if I was --no, ~tr, I don't remem-

her, !'!ir. 

Q Well, you all, the fact of the matter is, Mr. 

Coulin~. you all owned a hunting cam~ together? 

A There were sixteen of us went together. 

Q Sure, all the fellows did and every year you went 

on a hunt and that was you all's way of paying 

this into a oot for the expenses for the annual 

hunt, 1'111 of you all? 

A Most of the timE' the grocerif's were paid by 

Ramiro Carrillo, as far as I know, sir. 

Q You just don't remember th~ fact that you guys 
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wer~ all together and had hunting leases to.ether? 

1 A YE"s, !'lir. 

Q And you went out thPre every year and you all 

"'oulcl hunt and then at the Pnd of thP hunt, you 

all would ~Itch tn your ~h~re and all the 

PYoenses would bE' oald, that ts just all news to 

you todsy? 

A No, sir, the check was dated on November the 8th, 

lt couldn't have been after the hunt. 

Q Well, you don't -- you can't tell us or enli~hten 

us any on that tyoe of a relatlonshlo that you 

A We had that relatlonshlo but that check ts not 

connected with that, sir. 

Q All right. 

(Dlscusston off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Judge Meyers, 

for your Indulgence. 

I would like to have these marked, 

olse. 

(Marked for identification by the 

re0 orter as Exhibits R-78, A and B: R-79, 

A and B: R-80, A and B; R-81, R-82, A and B, 
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R-A~, R-R4, A ~nrl B, R-R5, R-R6, A and B, 

R-87, A and B. R-AA, A and B. 

Q Mr. Coulin~. during thP time that you were ta~ 

a~~e~sor-collector of the Benavides Indenendent 

School District you had, of course, the chargP of 

and were authorized to 1ssue checks on the 

account of BenavtdPs Indenendent School District, 

were you not? 

A Yes, !'l ir. 

Q And, I will show you R-75-B, for P~amy,le, and it 

is an Exhibit cnmoosed of two checks, am I cor-

rPct? 

A Thi.s Is on 196R, yes, sir. 

Q Signed by you? 

A By me and Mr. D. C. Chaoa and Gordon D. Ross. 

Q And you recognize that as your signature? 

Q All right, and that date, as you oointed out, 

was December the llth; 1968, am I correct? 

A Yes, !'l{r. 

Q And R-75A is the suo0ortin~ invoice? 

A Yt>s, sir. 

Q Is it not? 

A That's correct. 

Q Uoon which the check R·75B was issued? 
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A Yes, str. I 

Q Am I correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And you reco~ntze those documents as well as the 

endorsements which is thP R•75C? 

A Yes, sir, this i~ the one I testified at the 

federal court. 

Q That you for~ed, the issuancP of the check and 

the endorsement ~nd took the cash? 

A YPs, str, and I ~ave the cash to 0, P. and I 

ke~t some of it. 

Q What you testified over there you took the cash 

and ~ave it to Jud~e Carrillo? 

A And I ke~t somP of it. 

Q And you ke~t sotD? yourself? 

A Yes, ~dr·. 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer R-75-A. 

THE MASTER: You offer A or A and B and C? 

MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry, Judge Meyers, 

I dfer R-75-A and B and C. 

MR. ODAM: We ob.iect to the entrance 

of R-75-A and B and C and I don't see that 

it "erta{ns -- I object on the ~rounds of 

relevancy. These checks were issued back 

in 1968 on the Benavides Inde~endent School 
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Distrfct account which isn't ~v@n in dis-

oute in any i~~ue that WP have before us. 

I don't even see thP relevancy as to 

ground~ for tmoeachm~nt on credibility. If 

he test{fied oreviously in another trial 

that he for~~d the si~natur~ and the mon@y 

went to Jud~~ Carrillo, that has been testi-

fied oreviously , and it mi~ht have been 

relevant ~n that oroceeding, but it is 

goin~ to take a great amount of time to ~o 

into each of tt_qe and I would object, Your 

Honor. 

MR. MITCHELL: I submit, Your Honor, 

I can go throu~h these oost•ha~te because 

tht> witness has orev'ously testi.fled to 

them under oath as indicated by his last 

answer end I would not i.moose on tht" timt" 

of the court. 

MR. ODAM: And also, Your Honor, I 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon mt", Mr. Odam, 

go ahead. 

MR. ODAM: My only statt"ment is that 

I say that it is not relevant to the isRues 

of the crt"dtbility of this wi.tness and I do 

not set" that i~ i.s relt"vant to any other 
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~ssu~ in thi~ case. 

THE MASTER: Th~ only r~levancy I can 

see, it {s ~retty remote, I a~r~~. iR to 

~how " nattern, but Mr. Mitch£>11, what 

nAttern does it show? What are you -- whl!lt 

really ar£> you tryin~ to nrove? 

MR. MITCHELL: It show~ a oattern ~tnrl 

the course of eonduet, Your Honor. It shows 

that at a time urior to -- I take it back, 

the time is contemnoraneous to some of th~ 

snedficat ions L. the first amended noti.ce 

of h£>arin~. that thi.s man had on urevi.ous 

occasions admi.tted to for~tn~ numerous 

ch£>cks and documents in sunuort thereof, 

it relates to the man's credibili.ty • 

I think the record ought to sneak to 

his testimony i.n it's entirety and let 

someone n~tssin~ on the cr~df.bility have the 

full force and effect of this man's admis-

sions nreviously made under oath. 

MR. ODAM: As I stated earlier yester-

day, this witness has nreviously testifi.ed 

to that in the federal case before the jury 

which resulted in a convictton of Judge 

Carrillo. 
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I hav~ no doubt it would stand uo as 

far as credibility her~ and I just simply 

hate to take the time for onP thing and, again~ 

I think tt ts rPmot~ in point of time even 

for ourooses of credibtlity. 

THE MASTER: WPll, tf 1t i.s 

MR. ODAM: In that nart~cular proceed-

tng, it was back in 196R in the federal 

case and we are moving un from 71 throu?-h 

74. Even credibility to gn back --

THE ~STER: Tnse mov~ t~ 70 --

MR. MITCHELL: I will reoresent to th~ 

Court, Your Honor 

THE MASTER: Are you suggesting by that 

the fact that he testified that he forged 

his name ts one thing but is there anything 

else to tt besides that? 
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MR. MITCHELL: Testimony, of course, 

to it commencing in 1968 and running 

through 1970 and the period of time 

relevant directly on these charges here that 

he forged names, that he, as a public 

official, violated his oath and committed 

numerous and sundry felontes and the state 

is now asking this court to believe, in 

regard to testimony as to a district judge 

and sure, I think it is relevant. 

THE MASLZR: Are you suggesting 

MR. MITCHELL: I just say he is not, 

as the cases say, susceptible to belief and 

credibility. I am trying to document it 

and bring it forward. 

were 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, the items that I 

submitted to us for examination pursuanq 

to offer is R-75, which is a slip back in 

December, 1968. 

THE MASTER: Well, the relevancy, I 

see, and I was wrestling with it and I still 

am, is that maybe Mr. Mitchell is attempting 

to show that no one would gratuitously give 

substantial sums of money to someone else. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right. 
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THE ~~STER: And the pattern -- and I 

am not sure --

MR. MITCHELL: It is an incredible 

story and you are touching on it. 

I am sorry I stepped on the Master's 

statements, but 

THE MASTER: You might state it better 

than I was grasping to. 

MR. ODAM: I grant you that it is 

incredible. 

MR. MITC~ELL: If we take the twelve 

months or twenty-four months, it becomes 

critical. If we go back to 1968 and thj_s 

man testified that he has, over a period of 

time from 1968 to January, 1975, devised 

these methods of 1:ipping off the county, 

to what avail 

THE MASTER: I overrule the objection. 

MR. MITCHELL: It is incredible. 

MR. ODAM: I grant you that; it is 

incredible. Not that the witness is 

incredible, but we have --

THE MASTER: We have had enough sidebar. 

MR. MITCHELL: Have you had an opportuni~y 

to examine these7 
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MR. ODAM: I have and I have an 

objcecti.on :that .has been overruled . 

. :rHE ::MASTER: Yes, the objection is 

ove-rrUl.ed ·an1i we have admitted R-75-A, B 

and C. 

2505 

MR. MI.TCHELL: We have offered R-75-A, 

B and c. 

THE MASTER: And they are admitted. 

(By Mr. M,fi.tchell) First of all, Mr. Couling, 

I will hand you these and you have testified 

ab.nut .t.he:1t.e and I am sure you are familiar with 

a:ll of :them, is that correct? 

Take your time to examine these. 

We .a~r:e .talking about R-76, R-77, 78-A and B 

and R-79-A and B and R-80-A and B and R-81, R-82-A 

'.!l'RE .MASTER: And B. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. R-83, R-84-A and B, 

R~85-:A and B, R-86-A and B and R-87, R-88-A 

.and B., .a-nd I will ask you to examine those 

and ans.wer these questions. 

,First,, .are they checks executed by you 

and wiJ:h J:he endorsements forged by you? 

1lhe £irst one is n~t endorsed . 

rtfBy rMtr~ rM'i..t.Che11:) ,M.l rl,ght.. That is th.e .on.e --
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A Yes. 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

Now, go through there, and if you find any more 

of that type, let me know. 

THE MASTER: Let me ask you to ask him 

whatever questions you want him to do. He 

is to see if these are checks forged by him 

and endorsement• forged by him and what 

else? 

MR. MITCHELL: And if the checks are 

fraudulent and if you cashed the checks and 

gave the money to Judge Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: All right. You do that, 

and we will be in recess until five minutes 

to 12:00 o'clock. 

(Short recess was taken.) 

THE MASTER: You may proceed, Mr. 

Mitchell. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Have you made the examination 

now during this brief break for the purpose of 

answering the questions I have put to you? 

Yes, sir. 

And could you take each exhibit by number and tell 

us, or answer those questions as best you can. 
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R-86-A and B is a check made to Zertuche General 

Store in the amount of five hundred thirty-eight 

dollars eighty-nine cents and it is an endorsement 

by the store. 

It was executed by you on the face of the check? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you recall whether you cashe1 that check? 

I don't recall; it was endorsed by their stamp. 

Do you recall whether it was a false endorsement? 

I have no recollection of it. 

You have no indepe .. Jent recollection as to 

whether the claim was five hundred thirty-eight 

dollars eighty-nine cents? 

It was a claim, but I don't recall. 

You don't recall testifying that the five thirty­

eight eighty-nine, that you forged a Zertuche 

General Store endorsement and took that money and 

gave it to Judge Carrillo? 

No, sir, I don't recall. 

What are you talking about now? 

R-87-A and B. 

Was that endorsed by you? 

Yes, sir. 

And could you tell us whether or not that money 

was received by you pursuant to an endorsement? 
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20 

21 Q 

22 

A 

24 Q 

25 A 

No, it is rubber stamped, so I don't know what 

happened to it. 

You are testifying under oath here that this check 

is signed by you? 

Yes, me and D. C. Chapa and the rest of the 

board. 

You don't recall whether you enuorsed the check? 

I did not. 

You did not? 

No, sir. 

So you did not receive the money? 

No, sir, I didn't endorse it, so how could 1 have 

received the money. 

I understand. 

Now, you have moved to R-80-A, is that your 

signature on the check? 

Yes. 

And R-80-B? 

Yes, sir. And this one, too. This is the check 

and this is the stub of the check. 

Let's look at R-88-A, that is a check signed by 

you? 

Yes, sir. 

And it is endorsed by you? 

No, sir, it is not a forgery. I testified it 
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looks like George Zertuche, Sr. •s signature. 

Q But you testified it was a false bill? 

A I would like to see the bill. 

Q You can see that was Exhibit 88 in federal court? 

A 

Q 

Yes, but l-lhere is the bill? 

THE MASTER: Excuse me, is it just 

coincidental that it is also Respondents' 

Exhibit 88 here? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor, it is. 

THE WITNESS: It is R-85. 

THE MASTER: You asked him about R-88, 

I believe. 

MR. MITCHELL: The Court is correct, 

R-88-A and B is actually part of the 

government Exhibit 88 in federal court. 

Here, Your Honor, are R-88-A and B and 

one check is R-85 and is another, but they 

are all the same transaction. 

THE MASTER: All right, sir. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) You are testifying here you 

don't recall previously testifying R-88-A and B 

~\'ere s:l.gned by you? 

A Yes, sir. 

0. And the endorsement of George zc.,rtuche Is 

signature is signed by yo,t? I 
----~-------------------------------------------------------------~-
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A No, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

And that you took the money and gave it to 

0. P. Carrillo? 

No, sir, not on this particular cheek, or these 

particular cheeks. 

You don't have any idea why the government was 

asking you about that? 

I testified that particular check was endorsed 

by me -- that it was not endorsed by me. 

Did you testify it was a fraudulent claim? 

I have no idea, sir; I have to see the claim. 

I believe you testified, for the record, on 

September 16th and 17th, is that correct? 

Yes, sir, on that check I stated it was George 

Zertuche's endorsement and not mine. 

In federal court? 

Yes, sir. 

And you testified it was a fraudulent claim? 

I don't remember if I did or not. I sianed the 

oriainal check. 

Is it your testimony the check, a-88, was a correc~ 

and proper check? 

I just said it wae iesued and I need the invoices 

'to verify whether it wa1 fal1e or not. 

All ri&ht, 1ir. How about a-79-A and B? 
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A and B, this is the stub, not a check. It is a 

check from the Benavides Independent School 

District and the invoice vas made by me. 

Do you recall whether you testified that you took 

that money and gave it to 0. P. Carrillo? 

I don't remember, sir; I would have to see the 

original . 

Look at R-83. 

This is the aame voucher and it is a bill for 

sixteen hundred thirty-eight dollars. 

Do you recall issuing a check on the basis of that! 

invoice? 

I had to, air. There were a lot of billa made and! 

a lot of checks. \ 

Looking at the invoice, do you recall who executed 

it? 

No, I don't know who wrote it. 

Moving over to this, I believe this was one of 

the checks that you testified where the water 

coolers were delivered, 

I don't recali; I would have to see the original 

check . 

Do you recall this voucher was issued by you 

falsely and fraudulently and you endorsed Zertuche 

General Score on it? 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

I don't remember testifying to that, because 

there is no endorsement on the check. 

Look at 88, what is that? 

88-A is a check in the amount of nine hundred 

ninety-eight dollars seventy-four cents dated 

THE MASTER: Excuse me. Is this R-80 

or R-88? 

MR. MITCHELL: R-30-A. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) That is the check with your 

name on the front? 

Yes. This is one oL the checks I testified I 

forged. 

That has an endorsement Benavides General Store, 

also Rudolfo Couling? 

Yes, sir. 

And you testified you cashed that check and forged 

that check? 

Yes, sir. 

Did you give that money to 0. P. Carrillo? 

I don't remember. I have to see what I testified 

to over there. 

Well, forgetting what you testified to, what are 

the facts? 

Would you give me the check again? 

Just for the record, that is March 13, 19697 
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A Yes, sir. I believe I kept some of the money off 

2 that. 

3 Q 

4 A 

5 Q 

6 A 

7 Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 A 

II 

12 

13 

14 Q 

IS 

16 

17 

18 A 

18 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

23 

A 

25 Q 

But you don't remember how much? 

No, sir. 

Look !lt the next exhibit, which is R-81. 

This is the same as that, sir. 

That is the invoice supporting R-80-A and B? 

Yes. 

Look at the next check, R-78-A. 

It is from Benavides Independent School District, 

signed by me, in t~' amount of seven hundred 

seventy-eight dollars forty cents and 1 did 

endorse and forge the store name. 

So you forged the Benavides General Store on the 

back of the check, R-78-A, and that appears in 

R-78-B, and did you give that to Judge 0. P. 

Carrillo? 

t»art of it, sir. 

You don't recall how much? 

No, sir. 

Look at R-84-A and R-77, which is the voucher, 

and R-84-B, which is the back of the check; are 

they all the same transaction? 

Yes. 

Tell me about that. 
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It is in the amount of two thousand four hundred 

thirty-eight dollars, signed by me and president 

of the board and the superintendent. I forged 

Arturo's name on it and 1 endorsed it myself. 

And you got the two thousand four hundred and 

thirty-eight dollars; what did you do with that? 

I gave it to 0. P. Carrillo and l kept part of it. 

That is the transaction dated March 21st, 1969, 

am I correct? 

Sir? 

I say, that is May ~lst? 

Yes. 

Now, before I go on, there were many, many checks 

of this type, were there not, the ones we have 

shown you and the ones we have not shown you; 

these are not all of them? 

Would you clarify what you mean? 

Let's see if I can refresh your recollection. 

Looking over my shoulder here, do you recall 

a fi,e hundred dollar check endorsed by you, 

Zertuche General Store, deposit only, and that 

check was forged by you and the five hundred 

dollars you testified was 

How could I cash it if it was endorsed for 

deposit only? 
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Q l~ould i.t surprise you that is what you said? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

How could I; I could not have said that. 

I asked you that same t.hing in September, did I 

not? 

You didn't ask me anything about that in 

September. 

How about 7363 for two thousand one hundred two 

dollars, and that is something you testified 

that was the forged endorsement? 

I believe I only testified to some checks. 

MR. ODAM: Are we reading from an 

exhibit that is in evidence? 

MR. MITCHELL: They are still preparing 

them at the federal court and I do not have 

these here. 

THE MASTER: I take it you are reading 

from notes? 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right and I 

thought the witness's recollection could 

be ser~ed, but if not, I will strike out and 

go on if it is not. 

THE MASTER: All right. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Look at this one; this is the 

one to Olivera. 

Yes, sir. 
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That was Exhibit 80 over in federal court, and 

you endorsed it? 

Yes. 

And you stated there you gave the money to 

0. P. Carrillo? 

I stated before I helped; if I was working there, 

I was entitled to put part of it in. 

You did testify you put it in the name of 

Olivera Implement Company, by you, and took it 

and gave it to 0. P. Carrillo? 

I gave him some of ~t and I kept some of it. 

Let me ask you about that. Olivera was your 

father-in-law? 

Yes, sir. 

And during his lifetime, you didn't have the 

authority to draw any checks on that Olivera 

Implement Company account? 

Yes. 

Don't you recall you testified that until he went 

blind, that you could not do so? 

Yes. 

And you don't recall when he went blind? 

No, sir, I don't remember. 

You do remember the check in the amount of four 

hundred ninety-five dollars forty cents payable 
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to Benavides General Store, endorsed by them and 

Zertuche and you testified you forged that one? 

I imagine so. 

How about this one, 6104, nine hundred thirty-

four dollars twenty-six cents, dated April 10, 

1968, to Olivera Implement and endorsed by you, 

do you recall that one? You testified you gave 

that to O.P.? 

Some of it, yes, sir. 

6116, April 10, five hundred forty dollars fro.m 

the Benavides Independent School District to the 

Zertuche General Store, signed by you and endorsed 

Zertuche by you and you testified that was a 

forgery, did you not? 

I am not disagreeing with you, but I would like 

to see it. 

MR. MITCHELL: For the purpose of the 

record, I intend to take the record and get 

those and bring them back. I am trying to 

avoid all of that by refreshing the witness's 

recollection. 

MR. ODAM: I hate to be repetitious in 

the record, but this testimony deals with 

what Mr. Couling has testified to to be 

forgeries. In this particular case here, 
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our testimony has not thus far in this case, 

on this witness or any other, that 

Mr. Couling has forged anyone's name. It is 

obvious there were no other names on the 

check other than his own name and I don't 

see the relevancy of whether he forged checks 

on the Benavides Store and it is not relevant 

to what he did here. 

MR. MITCHELL: If the government or 

Examiner is taking the position, and they 

have called h.:...'l and have put the stamp of 

credibility on him, then it is not relevant 

and I take the position it is not relevant 

and then I will cease the examination if that 

is the case. 

THE MASTER: I think, though, that, of 

course, you have established that point. 

·' Mr. Couling has, on a number of 

occasions, admitted that. I thought we were 

going into this not to show forgery, because 

I think that is repetitious. 

He has admitted repeatedly on a number 

of occasions that he drew checks that were 

not to pay valid bills and he did forge the 

endorsements and benefited from the money 
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and gave some of it ~o Judge Carrillo. 

Now, to the extent that you are 

attempting to establish that it is contrary 

to human nature for one person to endanger 

himself or involve himself in such a scheme 

to benefit another without a corresponding 

benefit to himself, that is what you 

indicated to me you were going to do, is it 

not?· 

The question.is: How much detail do 

you want to go into to establish that? 

MR. MITCHELL: I came up from '68 to 

'69 and I have them up to '70 and I thought 

to pick up into '71, the ones here, and do 

what Mr. Odam suggested, the forgery of the 

invoi.ces, and I take the position he forged 

them. l!:n.d they are not ours. 
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MR. ODAM: WhPn you snPak of a forgpry 

of invoices, if you mPan st~nin~ somPOnP 

else's name to invoices or he si~ned in~ces 

for work that was not done? 

MR. MITCHELL: Forgery, as I understand 

it, has two definitions. One, executing the 

authority of a ~erson without that person's 

authortty or ourporting t~ execute the author-

tty of one lawfully, such as taking the 

invoi.t'e that triggers the oayment of the 

checks. It is not beyond him to do it. I 

!iUIY he did it. 

MR. ODAM: Well, now, if he --

MR. MITCHELL: It is a continued con-

duct. 

MR. ODAM: My only comment on the 

last comment of the Court, on why i.t would 

be done, i.t i.s sim~ly my oosi.tion it has bPn 

established that he got some of the money, 

Jud~e Carrillo got some of the money and that 

has been established and it would be repeti-

tious to go through every year that it was 

done and I don't see --

MR. MITCHELL: Wrll, as a matter of 

fact, may I ask the witness a ftuestion. 
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Q (By Mr. Mitcht>ll:) Mr. Couli.nl!:, as to the monf'y 

th~t you ~ot, now, we arf' talkinl!: about thf' money 

th~t you ~ot ~~ to thosP check~. Olivera Im~le-

ment, Zertuche GPnPral Store, that beJtinnfnl!: fn 

6R, 69 and 70, ~ee If I'm not recollectinl!: your 

testimony that you gave ~rev-f.ously, I believe you 

never I!:Ot over five hundrt>d dollars total for 

th11t whole ot>riod of time. 

A I rlon't remember ff I sat~ over five hundred or 

more. 

Q Now, your tpstimony ~n this ~roceedinl!: was you 

f!ave everythinl!: --

A No, sir, I didn't say everythfnF. I said I ke~t 

some of the monPy. 

Q No, I'm not talkin2 ~out herf' tn this orocPdurP 

now. 

A Whtch one? 

Q Be~inntn~ in 70 an~ 71, all those checks were 

,:ti.ven 

A Those checks from the store, all the money went 

from the county -- that came from thP county wPnt 

to 0. P. CaDillo. 

Q And nomwas keot by you? 

A No, si.r. 

Q So it is a fair statement t~at you orobably didn't 
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2 dollars in all of this money from 196R to dat~? 

3 A I mi~ht hav~ kP~t in 68, u~ throu~h 1970, I 

mt~ht have keot five hundred or • thousand or 

5 more, I don't rf'mf'mber ayself. 

8 Q To datf''? 

7 A I'm not sayln~ to date, sir. 

8 Q All ri~ht. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

II 

18 

1'1 

It 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

MR. ~ITCHELL: W~ll, Jud~e. I don't 

know- how -- I do want to Rhortf'n it and I 

understand thP -oneern of thf' Court. Maybe 

I can run throu~h these and I will reuresent 

that these are the ones that I made, I made 

a detail of them all and they ~o throu~h 

69 and 70. 

The witness is reco~nizin~ some, it 

spems li.kf' I 11m makin~ som~ uro~resfl. 

THE MASTER: And I have uermitted you, 

over the ob1toetion that is i_s irrelevant, to 

do it. I do encoura~e you t~ 

MR. MITCHELL: Wt'll, let me _1umo into 

70, Jud~e . 

THE ~STER: -- to lumo it to~ether, 

coa,ress lt as much as we can. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht. Jud~e • 
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THE MASTER: Sn we can movP on. 

2 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) In ttnP wfth thP in~tructtons 

3 from thP Court, Mr. Coulinp:, I l:PliPVP, 1.-t mP 

~.- tf you can recall wfth mP tn the yPar 69, I 

s bplf.Pve thPre wPrP in March threP checks, onP for 

6 ~evPn hundred and ~eventy•Pi~ht dollars and that 

7 i.~ chPck number fi771, 97, 74, R7, 75, 79 and 94 

8 for two thousanrl four thirty. 

9 A 1bosP are those checks over there, sir, 

10 Q And thosP we have no nuestions about those were 

ll for~Pd on the front 4 nd the back and I believe 

12 you testifie" 

13 A Whatever I tP.stt ff.ed there. 

" Q All rtp:ht, let's move to 70, 

15 MR. MITCHELL: I don't want to indi-

16 cate, Ynur Honor, these are exclusive, but 

17 in ltnP with the Court's instructions --

II Q LPt's look at 1970, cheek number 'H7~. Zertuche 

II General Store, one thousand ten dollars. That 

chP.ck was dated R-17-70, endorsed for de~osit 

II only Cleofu~ Gon~alez, Georp:e Zertuche, Junior, 

and I believe you testified in that ~articular 

• ease you endorsed those, you forp:ed the endorse-

ment end cashed that cheek? 

S A How could I Pndorse Cleofus Gonzalez, his name! 
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Q Y~u don't r~memb~r1 

A I would likP to ~e~ the check,Rir. 

Q That would be check number ~1~7 for ten thousand 
I 

one thousand dol1ars, em I corr~ct? You don't 

recall that? 

A I don't recall tbt becausp I don't believe I 

ever did say that I --

Q Did you -- dtd you for~e Jose Saenz' name to 

any of these checks? 

A No, sir, no, sir. 

Q Y~uare testifyin~ tvday under oath that you did 

not snecifically ~rge Jose Saenz' name to cheek 

number ~439 oayebl~ to Zertuche General Store 

fssued by the Benevides Indeoendent School Dis-

tr~ct for a thousand and ei~ht dollars on Octo-

ber 12th, 1970? 

A No, sir. 

Q And endorsed? 

A I t~stified to the effect that I did not, sir. 

Q All ri~ht. Do you recall any of these checks, 

che('ks number 749 for five thirty-eip:ht oayeblt> 

to Zertuche Gt>nt>ral Store, endorst>d Zt>rtuehe 

Geneud Store, issued by the Benavides Inde~endt>nt 

School District si~ned by you? 

A I would~likt> to se~ the cheek first. 
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Q How about check number 7500? 

A The ~ame way, I would have to see the check. 

Q How about check number 7798 that was endorsed 

Zertuche Gener8l Store, Geor~e Zertuche, do you 

recall that? 

A I don't recall tt, but tn be honest with y~ if 

I t'!ay --

Q I want you to be honest. 

A I can't tell you until I see the check, Mr. 

Mitchell. 

Q All rip;ht. Let me •. and you another ltst --
MR. MITCHELL: For thE' Court, this is 

Another schedule that I made U'J). 

Q Now, I wi.ll .1ust h~tnd you thh li.st, it shows 

oayee~ Zertuche General Store, Olivera Im'J)lement 

Com'J)any, it show!'! a eheek number, whether i.t is 

on Benavides InrlQPndent School District or the 
' 

Conservation District, or the Duval County, I 

ask you if any of those, either you for~ed the 

issuance, the endorsements, ~ave the eash to 

Jud~e Carr'tllo? 

A I would like to see the cheeks, si.r. I can't 

say by this, I can't testify to anythin~w 

Q All ri~ht, you can't? 

A No. 
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MR. MITCHELL: May I have 1ust a 

Z'Zb 1 
minute, 

Ju«!jl;e Meyers? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

Q I understand your testimony ~reviously, Mr. 

Coul{n~, that you do not recall ever havin!l: issued 

" chrck 8!'1 the trpa.:urer of thE' Ben&vi.des Inde~en-

c:lt>nt School Di_strict to GectF:P P&rr. 

A I don't remembrr, si.r. I don't rem~mber you 

askin~ me end I don•~ remPmber 

Q Haveyou ever i.ssuE'd one to him from the Benavi.des 

Im~lPment and Hardware Com~any or the Olivera 

Im~lement end Hardware account? 

A To George Parr. no, str. 

Q Have you evrr hendrd him cash? 

A Not to GPor~e Parr, no, sir. 

Q You nevrr dtd takP any of thesE' chrcks that were 

tssuPd by thP Benevides Indenendent School Dis-

trict or the W~ter Conservation District or Duval 

County and cash those and ~ive the money to 

Geor!l:e Parr? 

A I never had any busi.ness with Mr. Parr, sir. 

A No, sir. 
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Q A~ a matt@r of fact, Mr. Couli.n~. you were behold-

~n~ to Geor~e Parr and his oolttical fore@ and 

oower for your vPry .1 ob? 

A No, str, Mr. 0. P. Carrillo wa s the onP that 

~ot me into the Rchool district as the ta~ 

collector, str. 

Q And not Geor~e Parr? 

A I talked to 0. P. C11rrf.llo, he ts the one t'hlt 

talked to me, str. 

Q An~ you didn't understand really you were a 

Gt>or~e Parr man? 

A At the time evPrybody was a Geor~e Parr man, sir. 

Q Are you a Geor~e Parr man, now? 

A Geor~e Parr is dead, sir. 

Q Or the Parr faction? 

A I belon~ to the old ~arty now, str. 

Q What old ~arty? 

A Just the old ~ar~. as far as I am concerned. 

MR. MITCHELL: I believe that's all 

the questtons I have of this witness at 

thts time, Judge Meyers. 
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BY MR, ODAM: 

Q Mr. Coulf.n~, Mr. Mi tchf'll ha!! ~tqkr>d you 11 numbPr 

of ~uf'sttons shout the sr>tttn~ u~ of Bf'navidf's 

Imolr>mr>nt and Hardware, about thf' conversstions 

you h11d with Ramtro Carrillo. 

Do you recall th£ ~enf'rally whf'n we started 

back into that Thursday, nearly two weeks a~o. 

do you recall whf'n we started that discussion? 

A Yf's, Rir. 

Q And I br>lif've it was your testimony~ that ttme 

that you !let uo thr> Benavides Im~lement and Hard-

ware by way of a note at San Die~o St8te Bank 

with Ramiro Carrillo, is that correct? 

A Wf' borrowed 8 note for three thou!!and dollars 

and I believe I alre8dy had an account in the 

bank, str. I'm not sure if I did or not. 

Q All rtp;ht. 

MR, ODAM: M8rk that. 

(Marked for tdentific8tton by thr> 

reoorter 8R Exhibit E-168.) 

Q I show you what haq been marked 8s E7hibtt E-168 

and -- there are two items on it. 
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you can tdenttfy thP ttem at the to~ of the 

2 

3 A Yr~, ~ir, thAt •~ my ~~~nature cArd at thr 

4 
Ftr~t State Bank of San Die~o, sir. It has fi!Ot 

5 the date nf Aorfl the 16th, 1971. 

6 Q ADrtl what? 

7 A Aortl 16, 1971. 

8 Q Would this be the tfme thAt ynu -- well -- I 

9 ~urs~ -- would thf~ be the ttme that you set u~ 

10 the checkin~ account for the store? 

11 A Yf's, str. 

12 Q What fs the item at the bottom? 

13 A That ts when Clf'ofus took over the store, thts 

14 i!! hts sl!!nature card, sir. 

15 Q You recogntze thAt as bein!! hts ~ifi!nature? 

16 A Y.-s, str. 

17 Q And thi s a1)Gf'ars to be a 'l!ferox cony of the 

18 

18 

20 

21 

c11rds? 

A At thf' bank in San DteRo, 

Q You fdentify both your st~natur.- on the too one 

And for Cleofus Con~alez when h.- took over the 

stor.- on the bottom one? 

A Yt>s, sir. 

MR. ODAM: We would offer i.nto evi.df'ncf' 

E-168. 
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MR. MITCHELL: May I ask thP witness 

a ~uest!on on voir dirP, Your Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATIQ! 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Mr. Coulin~. c~unsel asked you a nuPstion as 

rp~ards the st~natULP card aoopartng on the bottom 

half of E·16R. Ynu know what I am talk!n~ about? 

A Yes, sir, that was the a~ornval that I was ~oin~ 

to close my account and he was gnln~ to take over 

on the same namP of the store, sir. 

Q Actually, what it i.s, is an aooroval to allow 

Clpofus Gonzdez tn draw on the Bpnavi.des !mole-

ment and Hardware account? 

A That was after I sold to hi.m, you cAn see by the 

date there, Rtr. 

Q Well, the reason I askPd this is who struck out, 

"RPmarks" and out "Aooroved R. M. Coultn~" in 

there? 

A I out my name but I don 1 t know ,..,ho scratched that 

out, sir. 
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MR •. MITCHELL: Pf"rhans this is 

ml!lte croi!IR-E'xaminatton, Your H,nor, and .1ul'lt 

t f on~ .that I haven't i!l tlltf"d today beyond thP 

sco~e and irrelevant anrl immaterial, beyond 

thE' formal and beyond the amendPd and rPlatP 

to non-1udictal duties and thp best evidence 

rulP. 

THE MASTER: Now, ~ait, do you object 

MR, MITCHET.t.: I wi.thdraw the objection 

THE MASTER: The other ob1ections are 

omitted -- nr the object~oni!l arP overruled. 

I started to !'lay this, I believe this is 

the latf"st i.n the day that you have state<t 

your bai!lic four objecti.ons i!ltncP we have 

been in heartn~. 

BY MR., ODAM: 

The E'Jfhtbit ts admitted. 

RE-EXAMINATION CONTINUED 
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Q Now, you idrnti.fi.rd on the too of E-168 your 

A Y•~, ~ir. 

Q And I belirve Mr. Mttchell ootnted out your si~na-

ture in on the bottom eard also? 

A Yes. !';{r. 

Q Could you •~olein for the Court and for the 

reeord why your ~{~nature would aooear on the 

bottom? 

A The bank ealled me that Cleofus went over there 

and said he had bou~ht the business from me and 

I told them yeA, RO they sent the eard over and 

they said that i.t was -- that I aooroved he was 

~oin• to si~n cheeks from then on on his own store 

Q Now, where it says a0oroved, d'f.d you write --

df.d you strike out remarks and out aooroved? 

A No, sir • 

Q Was it like that when it came to you? 

A Yf's, sir. 

Q And the bottom card is when Clf'nfus Atarted 

on the accounts, it was in June thP 9th? 

Q 1975? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Now, this too card, Aortl 16th, 1971. is that --
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I think your t~stimnny 1ust a whil~ a~o wa~ that 

is when you set uo the checkin~ account for the 

~torE"? 

A Yes. ~<:ir. 

Q Now, but your best recollection is that you took 

out a note thereafter? 

Q A cou~le of weeks later? 

A A cnuole of we~ks later or R month later, I took 

a note which Ramiro counter-signed with me, yes, 

~tr. 

Q Again, there has been abundant dUPstions asked 

by Mr. Mitchell as to Benavides Imolement and 

Hardware and the oartnershio and the silent ~art-

nershi~ and Jud~e Carrillo and Ramiro Carrillo 

and the Questions attemotin~ to be established 

that it was all yours. 

My rruest1on to you i111 the evi.dc>nce thus far 

has clearly i_ndi.cated by everythi.n~ we have M>n 

Bc>navides Imolement and Hardware, as an entity, 

and where tt was si~ned. it was ~ignpd like on 

this card with your name, the Rio Grande City 

card with your name. 

Do you agree that is what the testimony ha~ 

been thus far and the evidence has been when you 
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-----------------------------------+ 
have b~en in thP room, fs that corr~ct? 

A 

Q My nuestion to you, tf that ~~ thP case, why 

waR lt ~et u~ in that manner anrl I believe you 

have testified to this previously. 

MR. MITCHELL: Watt .1ust a minute, 

that would be ar~umentatfve and violate the 

best evidence rule aR rPoresented by R-70 

and E-168. 

MR. ODAM: Y0ur H0nor, I don't know 

how it would l-..~ ar~umt>nt~ttlve. I certai.nly 

don't i.ntend to ar~ue wfth my own witness. 

As far a~ the best evidence, my oues-

tion to hfm is tf that is whAt it ts. My 

~uPstion is ~~m~ly why was it set un like 

this, tf his orevtous testimony was that 

he had a discussion wfth Ramfro Carrillo. 

'MR. MITCHELL: Well, o&rdon me, Your 

Honor. The ouestions assumed the fact that 

is not established by the evidence. The 

R-70 0 redates the conversation with Carrillo 

that is May of 71 and likew{Re lis R -- his 

E-16R oredates it, oredat~s the conversation 

and that ft would be hearsay, thereforP. 

THE MASTER: Well, the nuestion is why 
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MR. ODAM: ThP ouestton iR why was 

L..) , J 
--+ 

the Bensvtde~ Imulement end H~rdware account 

e~tabli~hed and thP ~tore established at 

thts time fn Auril, 1971. 

THE MASTER: Your objection i~ over-

ruled to that. 

A Now, would you re~eat it a~atn. ~tr. 

Q (By Mr. Odsm:) YeA, I will. The cht>ckin~ 

account wa~ established and yours was the only 

name on it. 

A Ye~, ~;tr. 

Q My ouestion wa~. that everythin~ that we have 

RPen that it we~ a sole ~ro~rtetorsht~ that was 

~et u~ and why waR it e~tablished only by you? 

A We11, I believe I ~tated that I am not sure if 

I Rtsted that I had a conversation with Ramtro 

before that or after that. I don't know the 

e~act date, but the store was uarttally o~ened, 

likP I ststt>d before it was ooened most of thP 

time, just Saturdays and wt>ekends for maybe an 

hour or two durtn, the day. 

Wht>n Eloy Carrillo was workin~ there, he 

w~s a de~uty sheriff, he used to ~o when he was 

off duty end I believe we started sellin~ some 

~tuff to the -- very little stuff to the water 
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d{Rtrlct and some to the county and school ~nd 

2 that iR wh~n we ooen the Mccount the first time. 

3 Now, later on in May, Rarntro came in and 

4 said thet they w~r~ not going to do any more 

5 bu~inesR with thP Zertuche Store through the 

6 county: that he wanted that business to continue 

7 from the Farm and Ranch to the Benavides Implement 

8 and Hardware Company and the Henavides Implement 

9 and Hardware would sell to the county andm turn 

10 w~en the county oaid the store, the store would 

11 ~•Y back to the f~ ~ and Ranch. 

12 Q Now, did you l!ver have a di.scus!'!ion with Rami.ro 

13 Carrillo as to whether or not to carry it as a 

14 partnership or not? 

15 A He told me specifically he di.dn' t want it known 

16 that it was a oartnershio, just a silent partner. 

17 0 That he was to be a si.lent nartner? 

18 A Yes, s i.r, and my understsnding when we borrowt"rl 

19 the money he said it would be a thousand dollars 

a olece and I Raid who is the third oerRon and 

21 he sai.d 0. P. Carrillo wants oart of it. 

22 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, J~e. 

~ A We want it all to --

24 MR. MITCHELL: In view of the fact of 

25 the long answer, we are going to move to 
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~trik~ it anrl reou~st that Counsel out 11 

ouestion to the wttness in time constraint~. 

~oecific times, olace, of the conversation 

so as to o~rmit me to be intelligently 

informed ~o that I can ob1ect. 

MR. ODAM: I ~ill reohrase the ~ues-

tion. 

THE MASTER: All rt ght. 

Q When did Ramiro Carrillo have this conve~ion 

with you, as best you can recAll, as to dat~? 

A Well, it had to be u somewhere in the latter 

oart of -- 88 late as -- as early as March or 

the m~ddle of Anril, sir. 

Q Of what year? 

A 1971. 

Q Okey, so it wa!'l at that time the conversetf.on 

took ~lace with re~ard to the silent ~artnershtos? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Mr. Mitchell asked you a number of ouestions 

concernin~ a memorandum of understanding. I 

~lieve it is marked as R-57. 

Do you recall the ~ieee of oaner I am 

referrin~ to, memorandum of understanding that 

you st~ned with Mr. Blanton and some other 

Attorneys? 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTI 1 TEX,AS 78401 



' ' 

2 

3 
:I 
II 

• II 
5 li 

II 
II 

I I 
:· 

7 
Jl 

8 I 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

l& 

II 

17 

11 

11 

II) 

11 

a 

• .. 
• 

-----------------

A Y .. fl, ~ i r. 

A WPll, I didn't know I vas comfn~ hPr .. until I 

Q And vas the m~mnrandum of und .. r~t~ndln~ discussed 

with you in connectton vtth -.rour tP!'Iti_mony in 

this "rocePdlnv' 

A N~, A{r, lt waR not dt~cuss@d by you, Alr. 

MR. MITCh::L: That wasn't the ~uel'ltion, 

it would be non-res~onatv... The ~uestinn 

discus~ed and his anRver was not by you. 

MR. ODAM: That is correct, it ts non-

re!'l~onslve, 

Q Did anyone dtl'lcues your comtn~ to tel'ltify in 

e-ncP, "here i_s a memor&ndum of undf'rstandln~"? 

A No, sir, nobody «Hd, no, Rtr. 

Q Did t~nyone rPlate-, did Rnyon'" takP that memoran-

dum of understandinR and relate or say that ft 

ts the basiA that you have to ~o testtfy here tn 

thi!'l ~roeeedtn~? 

A No, l'lir, the memorandum, I Raw it in the federt~l 
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court an~ when Mr. Mitchell ~resente~ it to me 

w~~ the Reeond time I ~aw it. I haven't seen it 

in between, ~tr. 

Q And when you ~ay in fed~ral court, you are talk-

tng about this trial Mr. Mitchell --

A In Sentember, yes, sir. 

Q All rf.ght. 

MR. ODAM: Mark thts. 

(Marked for identification a8 Exhibit 

E-169.) 

Q I show you what has been marked as E-169 and it 

·~~ears to be a certified cooy and it says jud~-

mt>nt f.n l)rob~ttion committment and docket 75C-45. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, 1ust a minute, 

Your H~nor. First of 1111, this is hi~hly 

imorooer to 11sk this witness concerning a 

jud~ment in a federal court. 

Secondly, we ere going to object 

before he reads it ell into evi~ence on 

the ground~ it is hearsay, immaterial and 

irrelevant ~tnd outsidt> the sco~e of this 

inaulry and tt is on aooeal, notice of 

is no -- it has no bearln~ whatsoever on 
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this ~rocee~ing before this body in this 

2S40l 

tribumtl. 

MR. ODAM: Mfty I res~ond to th8t, 

Your Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. ODAM: The witness was asked a 

number of nuesttons, first o4' 811, by Mr. 

Mitchell as to some oroceedings in federal 

court. I do not think it fs fully clBrified 

as to what oroceedtng that is. 

This docum~._t, which is the judgment 

and 0rob~tion order in that case, which is 

a certified cooy which really does not need 

the testimony of this witness, exceot to 

identify that that is what he testified in, 

is relevant to show what all t~ testimony 

went to. 

Mr. Mitchell has brought it uo and I 

think it is entirely orooer to bring it In 

to tie in what the testimony went to, the 

forgery, et cetera. 

This is simoly the final order in that 

0articular case and it is relevant for that 

THE MASTER: Is this the _1ud~ment in 
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the 

MR. ODAM: The federal case, yes, sir. 

THE ~STER: The federal tax suit 

8~alnst Judge Ca~rtllo? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, the one that Mr. 

Mitchell has been askin~ him the QUestions 

about, that he was a witness in. 

THE MASTER: Well, what does it show? 

MR. ODAM: WPll --

THE MASTER: What is the ooint of it? 

MR. ODAM: ~he ooint of tt, Your Honor, 

is that thfs ~entleman has been asked numer-

ous ~uestions about for~ery of certain instru-

menta and I didn't attend, but I am sure --

I oresume it is in this oarticular oroceedin~ 

here and I think we all can ~ssume that, 

that be~n, the case, the relevancy of it 

is this witness has testified, that testimony 

went into that case and from that case Jud~e 

0. P. Carrillo here ts the ;ud~ment and 

order as a result of t~ testimony. 

I think it is relevant for two reasons, 

numberme is to show what his orevious 

tel'lti.mony was and, nurabf'r two, that i.t we11ld 

be thf' main our0ose of it is to ~how what 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COUFIT REPORTERS 

7" ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840, 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

.13 

his 0revious testi.mony waA l!tnc:l to show that 

the cre<Hbilt.ty of th~s wt.tnPsR, which had 

been under attack and we hnve an Ol'l'Ortunity 

to rebut it, and this would oartially rebut 

that, that i.t was crpd{ble thPre for that 

,ur,ose. 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

' 
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THE MASTER: Well, no, I don't 

believe that is admissible for that. I 

don't believe the fact that a jury has acted 

in any way can influe·:tce me or the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission or the Su?reme 

Court as to the credibility of the witness 

in this hearing. That has to be judged by 

what was heard in this hearing and not by 

the fact that some other person or twelve 

persons may or might not have believed and 

that does not .~ove it. There may be other 

witnesses that swayed the jury in the case. 

MR. ODAM: You asked where it would 

be admitted and I said that would be one of 

the reasons. The other reason would be that 

the witness had been asked here by previous 

testimony in a particular proceeding, but 

it has never been fully identified as to 

what that is. We have talked about a federal 

cause or federal case, but this is a copy of 

the order identifying what that is and this 

witness can identify what that is and that 

he testified in that proceeding and in that 

order, it would be limited and we would stop 

right there. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Well, Counsel should 

make the statement he wants to pollute the 

record with it. I would say to this court 

twelve to fiftean times this has been 

mentioned by me, the State versus Ramiro 

and 0. P. Carrillo and did so for that purpose. 

I would say also that the rause number was 

mentioned --

THE MASTER· Cause No. 75-C-45. 

MR. MITCHELL: Right, and I belie,•e on 

several occas ... c.ns I have incorporated the 

cauae number in my questions. That would be 

no thin thread to introduce it in this case. 

MR. ODAM: If that is the case, 1 see 

no reason for it. 

THE MASTER: I sustain the objection. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now that he has got that 

in there for the Bill of Exception, can we 

state that the notice of appeal is in and 

will be prosecuted all of the way to the 

Supreme Court of the United States? 

THE MASTER: If they let you in. You 

can state that, yes. 

(By Mr. Odam) Mr. Couling, back on the Benavides 

Implement and Hardware Store, and the last 

CltATII ... ~I &: :\SSO< 1.~ I L '> 
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exhibit you looked at is E-168, the two cards 

here with Cleofus Gonzalez's name and your own 

name on the card. Did you have occasion to talk 

with R~iro Carrillo about the sale or transfer 

of the store to Ramiro Carrillo? 

Let me rephrase that. 

Did you have occasion to talk with Ramiro 

Carrillo about the sale of the store to Cleofus 

Gonzalez? 

No, sir. 

There was some coni~~ion earlier in the record, 

I believe, since you stated that you set up with 

the note, the store in May, 1971, with Ramiro 

Carrillo --

Yes, sir. 

-- and I take it that while the note was taken 

out in May, that the checking account was 

established in an earlier point in time? 

Yes, sir. 

Can you explain why the note would not be taken 

out until May and the checking account established 

a couple of weeks earlier? 

I believe that was it, we talked about it, and 

that was the time we went to the bank to get the 

note. We talked about it two or three weeks 
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before. 

So the checking account was set up April 16, 

1971? 

'71. 

And then we previously have offered into, and it 

has been admitted, a copy of the check, E-65, 

which ls written as a matter of fact for one 

thousand eight dollars on wl.at date? 

April 16, 1971. 

Who is this check made out to? 

0. P. Carrillo. 

So it is not your testimony that while the note 

was taken out, or you went to the bank around the 

1st of May, that the store account was established 

a couple of weeks earlier than that? 

Yes, sir. 

Mr. Mitchell asked you some questions, I believe, 

about a Mr. Juan Leal, the county commissioner 

for Precinct 2. I am not sure the record was 

clear on that point. Were you referring to a 

number of invoices that were made out or filled 

out by Cleofus Gonzalez and I believe you identifi d 

them as being filled out by him? 

Yes, sir. 

Did you yourself ever have occasion to talk about 
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those invoices or the checks that were coming out 

of the county with Juan Leal? 

No, sir. The checks were all of the checks that 

were brought to my store, including checks from 

the county. 

I take it that the only person that you -- well, 

strike that. 

Did you have conversations with anyone other 

than Cleofus Gonzalez and Ramiro Carrillo about 

the issuance of those county checks? 

I only talked with ~amiro Carrillo when he brought 

them in. 

Did you not talk to Cleofus about the checks? 

No, the checks were brought by Ramiro. 

To the tax office where you were? 

Yes. 

Mr. Mitchell asked you about the purchase of, 

I believe you said, eight head of cattle from 

0. P. Carrillo. 

Yes, sir, I bought -- 1 had some cattle on the 

ranch which my wife inherited and when I borrowed 

the money from F.H.A., I bought eight or ten head 

that were bred from 0. P. Carrillo. 

These checks in evidence, the county checks, and 

these checks, No. 65, to 0. P. Carrillo, were 
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any of these checks issued -- were any of those 

to pay for that bunch of cattle? 

No, sir. 

How did you pay for them? 

With the loan I had with F.H.A. in the Bank of 

San Diego. 

THE MASTER: Did you say you bought 

those at an auction? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. They were 

bought at the auction with someone else, 

THE MAST,.."~: Who did? 

THE WITNESS: The Beefmaster 

Association. 

THE MASTER: To whom was the payment 

made for the cows you bought? 

THE WITNESS: I don't know if I made it 

to 0. P. Carrillo or -- I don't remember. 

I bousht them at an auction sale. 

THE MASTER: That was what got my 

curiosity aroused, because normally you pay 

the auctioneer or auction house. 

THE WITNESS: This particular percentage 

went to the auctioneers. They didn't use the 

regular ones, so 

THE MASTER: So you don't know how the 
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check was made? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir. 

(By Mr. Odam) But it is your testimony that 

these particular checks in evidence were not to 

pay for those cows? 

These l.rere not, no, sir. 

Now, we did not get into this on direct 

examination, but it came up, I believe, in 

response to a question from Mr. Mitchell regarding 

E-94, that is where we first got into it and it 

is concerning the M~~sey-Ferguson tractor. 

Could you clarify how it was set up for the 

accounts and the bank to purchase this Massey-

Ferguson tractor? 

0. P. Carrillo came to me and said he needed a 

check for twenty-nine something for a payment or 

down payment. I could be wrong on that, but from 

the Rio Grande bank, which I did. I believe the 

check was returned for insufficient funds and 

later I had to write a new check which did clear 

the bank. 

When Judge Carrillo came to talk to you about this 

matter, this Massey-Ferguson, and I show you 

Exhibit E-62, this first entry for twenty-nine 

seventy-five, is that the check you issued? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q For the Massey-Ferguson? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: Mark this, please. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was marked Examiner's Exhibit 170 

for identification.) 

Q (By Mr. Odam) I believe you said something 
1 

about -- if you co~·i restate that about reissuing! 
I 

a check, I would appreciate it. [ 

A The first check was issued before November, I 

believe, and it came back and I was told by 0. P. 

the check was no good, 

MR. MITCHELL: Objection, hearsay, 

move to strike. 

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled. 

Q (By Mr. Odam) Let's clarify who said this to 

you. 

A 0. P. Carrillo said the check had not cleared. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, I appreciate 

the fact it is a statement purporting to be 

made by my client to this witness, that a 

check written by this witness to a third part 
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was insufficient, but there is no way this 

witness can know that. 

THE MASTER: Overruled. 

(By Mr. Odam) I show you E-170 and ask you to 

look at it. 

Yes, sir. 

Can you identify E-170, what it is? 

This is a letter from Nuecea Farm Center, 

Robstown, to 0. P. Carrillo stating that 

MR. MITCHELL: Just a minute. We are 

going to requL ·t, first of all, that we be 

given an opportunity to see it without the 

witness reading it into evidence. We have 

to object at this stage of the proceeding. 

THE MASTER: I have not seen it, but 

I suppose that is what it is. 

(By Mr. Odam) Let me ask you, without identifying 

the letter specifically, identify to whom the 

letter is addressed. 

To 0. P. Carrillo. 

The letter relates to -- strike that. 

MR. ODAM: I would offer E-170 into 

evidence. 

MR. MITCHELL: Objection, hearsay, 

best evidence, improper authentication and 
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irrelevant and ~aterial. 

THE MASTER: The first three are 

sustained, but I don't know about immaterial 

and irrelevant. 

MR. ODAM: I would submit to Counsel this 

is a machine copy, as is R-74, which 

Mr. Mitchell was kind enough to allow in 

evidence, so we would not have to have 

someone come over from Robstown to identify 

it. I asked that this copy be made and we 

can have somec ~ drive over to identify that 

it came out of their records, but it appears 

to be like this copy was where we would have 

to put someone on the stand and to the task 

to do the same thing. 

MR. MITCHELL: My problem with the 

exhibit, it is a letter or Xerox of a carbon 

copy of a letter purportedly to Judge 

Carrillo. I submit this witness, Mr. Couling, 

is not an authenticating witness for that 

document. 

THE MASTER: I could conceive of ways 

he could be, but he has not been yet. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right. 

THE MASTER: The objection is good. 
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Not only do you have someone say it is a 

copy of the letter in our files, but you have 

to have someone verify that it was mailed 

to the addressee. Then presumption takes 

over and you are not near that on this letter. 

MR. MITCHELL: Which would be rebuttable. 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: I realize that full well and 

I was attempting to see if we could get one 

in and see if Mr. Mitchell would agree. 

MR. MITC!'C,.,L: May I be permitted to 

address counsel? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: R-74 is dated two years 

prior to E-170 and therefore is no tie-in to 

assure me of authentication and I don't know, 

because of that, on the time lapse. I 

cannot state to the Court I agree to the 

authenticity of the E-170. I don't want to 

appear to be unreasonable, but if there ~1ere 

a tie-in 

MR. ODAM: It states the amount of money 

was due in September, 1973, two thousand 

nine hundred two dollars. 

MR. MITCHELL: The check doesn't have 
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anything to do with that figure. It is not 

the same figure and there are problema on 

it. 

THE MASTER: May I see it, please? 

MR. ODAM: I understand E-170 has been 

offered and the objection is sustained, 

THE MASTER: Yes, sustained, 

(By Mr. Odam) Mr. Couling. I believe Mr. Mitchell, 

by way of his questions, would have ua believe tha 

perhaps some of these payments that state on them 

to be truck rental .1ere payments of the truck you 

purchased from 0. P. Carrillo on these checks he 

put in evidence, and I want to be aure the record 

is clear. 

Was that in payment of the truck you bought 

from 0. P. Carrillo? 

No, sir. 

Why did you put that on it? 

I put it down for legal advice and then I 

scratched through it and put rental on the truck. 

Did he render advice to Benavides Implement and 

Hardware? 

No. 

He had to get the money from the store, in other 

words? 
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A Right. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

MR. MITCHELL: Objection, that is not 

a permissible question and we object to 

that. The attorney's statement of what was 

in his mind -- I have no quarrel --

MR. ODAM: Strike that question and I 

will ask you this. 

(By Mr. Odam) Judge 0. P. Carrillo never rendered 

legal advice to the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware Store? 

No, sir. 

And you didn't make out this check to buy that 

truck from him? 

No, sir. 

Mr. Mitchell also posed questions to you, I 

believe, about a default on the Caterpillar 

payments, the payments you were making to Plains 

Machinery? 

Yes, sir. 

I believe it was said it was in default for six 

months, was it? 

Not to my knowledge, no, sir. 

I show you what has been marked E-147, which is 

in evidence, and ask you if you cEn identify for 

the record what the date is on this check? 
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A This is February 19, 1973. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

February 19, 1973? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, this will be a check you made p·ayable to 

Plains Machinery? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you recall when it was, from the earlier 

testimony, as to when Judge Carrillo came on the 

note and picked up the legal ownership of the 

Caterpillars? 

I believe it was in 1974. 

And this check we have here is in 1973? 

Yes, sir. 

Now, he again -- we went through this on direct 

examination and I don't mean to be repetitious, 

and I want to be sure I understand. 

The payments were coming out of the county 

and going to pay for the Caterpillars and the 

difference being made up by Judge Carrillo. This 

is concerning that area. 

My question to you is this. 

What conversation did you have with Judge 

Carrillo about money coming from the county to 

pay for those Caterpillars? 

I don't know if it was him or Ramiro that stated 

CIIATIIAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

7t7 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY SANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840! 



2 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 Q 

11 

12 A 

13 

14 

15 

16 Q 

17 

18 A 

19 

20 

21 

'25 

2557 

he would get money to pay for the Caterpillars 

from the county and the difference would be made 

up by 0. P. Carrillo. 

MR. MITCHELL: Objection, that is a gues 

and hearsay as to the extent that the witness 

stated he could not identify under oath 

he could not state who it was that told him 

that. 

THE MASTER: Sustained. 

(By Mr. Odam) You could not remember whether it 

was Ramiro or 0. P.: 

The only one that talked to me about the checks 

was Ramiro. 
I 

MR. MITCHELL: I move to strike on that. 

THE MASTER: Sustained. 

(By Mr. Odam) Why did you make out the checks 

for the Caterpillar payments to Plains Machinery? 

On that particular one, I had a conversation with 

0. P. He said I had to make the payments from the 

Rio Grande bank. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I ask the Court to 

instruct counsel as to time, I would like to 

ask counsel to phrase it in terms of time. 

MR. ODAM: I will ask ~hat question. I 

was going to ask him about that. 
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(By Mr. Odam) You had this conversation. Do you ' 

recall when that conversation was with Judge 

0. P. Carrillo, whereby the county would be 

issuing checks? 

To pay for the root plows and tractors? 

Yes. 

It was somewhere in the latter part of 1972 or 

the early part of 1973, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, the latter 

part of 1 73 or 1 74? 

THE MAST~~: I understood him to say 

the latter part of '72 or the early part of 

I 73, 

Is that what you said? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, sir • . 
(By Mr. Odam) Around the time the payments 

started in January, 1973, is that correct? 

Yes, sir. 

So it would be around that time you had a 

conversation with Judae 0. P. Carrillo on that? 

Yes. 

You just stated that payment was to be made from 

the Rio Grande City bank? 

Yes, sir. 
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Now, Mr. Mitchell asked you a number of questions 

about R-70, which has your name on it. 

Did you go over to the bank and pick up that 

card? 

No, sir. 

Haw did you get the card? 

0. P. Carrillo brought me the c£rd from. Rio 

Grande City. 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo brought the card to you to 

set up the account? 

Yes, sir. 

I show you what has been marked as R-73. Can you 

identify that? 

It is a financial statement, 

Where did you get that? 

Mr. Carrillo brought me the blanks for it. 

And this was to set up the loans? 

Yes, sir. 

And Judge Carrillo brought you these? 

Yes, sir. 

Did he say anything to you when he brought you 

these documents? 

That they were going to negotiate a loan at the 

Rio Grande City National Bank. 

And this was a loan to pay for the Massey-Ferguson~ 
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A Yes, s:lr. 

Q 

A 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Have you ever been to that bank? 

In the early fifties, sir. 

But not in connectlon \'Jith this account here, 

however? 

No, sir. 

'~\Tho did you talk to in negotiating the loan to set 
lj 

up the note in the first place? 

I don't know who Mr. Carrillo talked to, all I 

know is that Judge 0. P. Carrillo brought me the 

note and the papc··~ and I signed them and it was 

set up. 

When was that? 

It was before the note -- when one of the payments 
I 

became due, I called on the bank. 

I guess that is the reason I asked the question. 

I got the impression the note was set up and 

it was your set-up on it. I take it it was brought 

to you? 

Yes, sir. 

You did not yourself negotiate the note with any 

bank officer? 

No, sir. 

These papers were brought to you by Judge Carrillo~ 

Yes, air. 
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Q Mr. Mitchell asked you a question about the 
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purchasing of a drugstore counter. Did you 

purchase that from Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

No, sir. 

Is it your testimony that what is put on those 

checks in evidence made out to Judge 0. P. 

Carrillo, the description of wb~tever it was on 

there, for example, the truck rental, was not in 

fact whatever the work was done or whatever goods 

and services purportedly took place, that never 

did take place? 

No, sir, it never did. 

Well, I believe my last question of you, 

Mr. Couling, is regarding the Parr faction. 

Are you here testifying because of some 

political dispute involving Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

No, sir. 

Have you testified in any case because of this 

political dispute between the Parra and Carrillos 

No, sir. 

I believe you previously testified that you have, 

for a long time, been a friend and associate of 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

Yes, for a long time, including the other 

Carrilloa. 
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I take it -- we are not going into the political 

history of Duval County, but you are not here 

testifying because of any political dispute? 

No, sir. 

You are testifying here as to what names appear 

on these checks issued and the facts that 

actually occurred? 

·a A Yes, sir, 

s Q ·And because that is what occurred? 

'"10 ·A Yes, ··sir. 

!11 

:12 

: '13 ' 
' 

·ts 

16 

117 

'19 •• 
' 

;·.20 

7.23 

Z24 ;: 

I 
:'25 .; 

il 

MR. ODAl.. Pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge Meyers, I am going 

·to havesome recross and, may I ask, I don't 

·hav-e the daily copy of this witness that I 

would like to have made available, 

particularly as to that portion of his 

telttbnony · where I asked · him about the time 

where be had the alleged conversation with 

·Ramiro Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: Well, I went past 1:00 

.in the belief that we would get through 

with this witness, but you are telling me we 

·will not? 

:&. MITCHELL: I don't believe we are, 

·,Your Honor. 
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THE MASTER: I don't know what volume 

you are asking for, but you have everything 

except this week, do you not? 

MR. MITCHELL: I have the copies 

delivered by Mr. Pipkin's office before 

Monday week. I have not received any since 

that point. 

THE MASTER: I have copies of everything 

taken before the Thanksgiving break. It is 

twelve or thirteen volumes. 

MR. MITC~~~LL: 1 don't have, Your 

Honor, just anything except that first group. 

What I really want is Rudolfo Couling's 

testimony commencing -- well, I am not sure 

which volume. 

MR. ODAM: All of those copies were 

made and 1 don't know what happened to them. 

MR. PIPKIN: May I state, Mrs. Pearson 

said they were delivered to our office and 

it was her understanding someone from 

Mr. Mitchell's office would pick them up. 

THE MASTER: Do you have volumes you . 

could make available to him? 

week. 

MR. ODAM: We have nothing from this 
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THE MASTER: I mean before this week. 

MR. ODAM: Sure, all of them. 

MR. MITCHELL: All I want really is the 

testimony of Mr. Couling when he first took 

the stand. 

THE MASTER: That was before this week. 

MR. MITCHELL: I almost have the time, 

I believe. 

MR. ODAM: Well, those copies would be 

in Austin, because that Monday we sent back 

to start makic~ copies of. I believe the 

only copy I have is yesterday that is here. 

MR. MITCHELL: The testimony about which 

I have reference is on a 12:00 o'clock sessio~ 

on 12-2-75. 

MR. ODAM: Well, that was yesterday and 

here is yesterday's copy. Monday's copy was 

not -- it was not here. It was Monday when 

you started on cross, I believe. 

THE MASTER: Need this be on the record, 

Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MITCHELL: No. 

THE MASTER: Off the record. 

(Whereupon, an off-the record 
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discussion was had.) 

THE MASTER: Back on the record. 

MR. MITCHELL: Exhibit 76, the witness 

did not identify, and consequently there is 

no authenticating testimony supporting its 

admission and I withdraw R-76. 

THE MASTER: I see. It was marked, 

but never offered? 

MR. MITCHELL: That is right, because 

there was no a~thenticating testimony and I 

would like to withdraw it completely and 

leave it open for a new exhibit. 

THE MASTER: Well, let's not do that. 

It is withdrawn, however. 

Do you have what you wanted? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, sir. 

THE MASTER: What is it that you want? 

MR. MITCHELL: We would have to get all 

of his testimony. 

THE MASTER: Everything up until Monday 

by way of copies -- you have copies of 

yesterday, but Monday has been sent to Austin. 

I have the original of Monday, which I think 

I would be willing to make available to you, 
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but I don't want any marks on it. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, if I could have 

it for use just here in the courtroom --

THE MASTER: I don't have it here with 

me. 
') (\ \ "'1 

MR.MITCRELL: r-~al1 the testimony and 

I pressed home the filet of1the date of the 

conversation and t~~~.i'·~~ ~~"f I was looking 

for. I can almost pick it out in the flow 

of the testimony. 

I believe it was when I started my 

cross-examination. 

MR. ODAM: That would be on Monday. 

THE MASTER: Well, if you will send 

someone over to my motel room, Room 718 at 

the La Quinta, I will furnish it to you. I 

have the original, but I want it back intact. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right, Judge. 

THE MASTER: You can bring it back 

tomorrow morning. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will come over myself. 

THE MASTER: Thank you. 

The hearing will be in recess until 

tomorrow morning at 8:30. 
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